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UNIQUE HOTEL & RESORTS PLC

Unique Hotel & Resorts PLC
Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 September 2025

Amount in Taka

NOS || 30 September 2025 || '30 June 2025
ASSETS
Non-current Assets 37,183,613,910 36,890,592,219
Property, plant and equipment, net 5 20,171,802 243 20,235,745,333
Intangible asset, net 6 10,862,275 11,097.916
Construction work in progress 7 8,777,139,642 8.720,587,570
Fixed deposit receipts 13 46,199 998 46,199,998
Investment in Joint Venture 9.02 B,0R6,596.961 7785867 917
Investment in unquoted shares 9.03 87,786,000 87,786,000
Investment in Associate 904 3,206,791 3307485
Current Assets 7.628,203,954 7,689,121,047
Inventories 8 114,084,852 133793711
Investment in quoted share 901 277,531,924 244,635,937
Other receivables 11 1,403.760.892 1,362 281 591
Advances, deposits and prepayments 12 3.546,020,055 3.762,455.691
Cash and cash cquivalents 14 180,130,490 143,266 460
TOTAL ASSETS 44,811,817,863 44,579,713,266
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders' Equity 27,958,079,105 27,646,639,041
Share capital 15 2.944 000,000 2944 000,000
Share premium 16 6,181,931,836 6181931 836
Revaluation reserve 17 9.704,125271 Q.708.801 512
Hedging reserve |8 (374.8919.295) (283,307,290
Retained earnings 9.502,941,293 0095412982
Non-¢urrent Liabilities 9,255,112,782 9,434,798,807
Term loan- non-current portion 19 6,037.968,727 6,255,666,697
Deferred tax liability 20 3,217,144,055 3.179,132.111
Current Liabilities 7.598,625,976 7,498,275,418
Term loan- current portion 19 1.334.658,177 1,334,658,177
Short term loans 3 1,823 398323 1,782,253 965
Due o operator and its affiliates 22 199 744 897 | 89,038,480
Accounts pavable 23 136,166,068 11, 438.002
Undistributed ‘unclaimed dividend 24 4331425 43314425
Liabilities to intercompanies 25 733,754,815 733758815
Other accruals and payables 26 3,366,568 271 3,342,796 554
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 44,811,817,863 44,579,713,266
Net Asset Value (NAV) per share (Published) 41.01 94.97 23.91

Fhe accompanying notes form an anegral pari of these financtal statencnty and are (o be read s compranction therewnh,
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UNIQUE HOTEL & RESORTS PLC

Unique Hotel & Resorts PLC

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the period from 01 July 2025 to 30 September 2025

Amount in Taka

01 July 2025

01 July 2024

Notes
to to

30 September 2025 || 30 September 2024
Revenue 27 732,941 994 440,704,925
Cost ol sales 28 (232,769 870) (141.134,082)
Gross profit 500,172,124 299,570,843
Administrative and other general expenses 29 (241.656,624) (173,962,663)
Operating profit 258,515,500 125,608,180
Comporate office expenses 30 (111.307,016) (103,588,899
Other income 31 94,515,443 64,558,314
Other expenses 37 (14,039935) (18.374,834)
Gain on investment in quated shares 3302 36,787,528 2630436
Interest income 34 77.299 330 68984083
Interest expenses 34 (195,320,581 ) (322.254,482)
Profit/(Loss) before WPPF, Sheraton profit share and tax 44,836,614 (183,677,469)
Provision for WPPF 36 (383,290) -
Share of net profit before tax of Sheraton Dhaka 37 30,213,174 67,094,738
Profit hefore tax of UHRL 74,666,499 (116,582,731}
Current tax 38 (25,842 838) (19,394 625)
Deferred tax 38 39.247.204 (39.732,295)
Net profit/{loss) after tax of UHRL 88,070,865 (175,709,651}
Shire of net profivatter tax o Joint Venture entity. net off deferred tax 39 313.712.840 303,700.263
Share of net loss alier tax of Associate company 9.04.02 (100.695) (199.339)
Total net profit after tax for the period 401,683,010 129,791,073
Other comprehensive income
Share of other comprehensive income of Joint Venture entity, net ofl deterred 1ax 40 (91,412.005) (229 843,110
Total comprehensive income(loss) for the period 310,271,004 {100,052,038)
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS) (Published) 4102 1.36 0.44

The accompanying notes fornt an mtegral part of these financial siatements aid are to be read i congunction therewith.

Chief Financigl Officer stary

[Jircct:) Independent Director

Stgned tn terms of our report of even date wwexed,
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UNIQUE HOTEL & RESORTS PLC

Unique Hotel & Resorts PLC
Statement of Cash Flows
For the period from 01 July 2025 to 30 September 2025

Amaount in Taka
Notes|| 01 July 2025 to 01 July 2024 to

30 Sept 2025 30 Sept 2024
Cash flows from operating activities
Collections from turnover and other sources 573.248,199 622 925 894
Payment for operating costs and other expenses (662.716,176) 118,058,691
Income tax paid during the period (24,287 .490) (17,886,685)
Net cash from operating activities (A) 41,04 (113,755,466) 723,097,899
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (2.812.969) {2.642,154)
Purchase of soltware - (13,872,395}
Payments for construction work (16,982,741) 11,417,746
Payments for hotel and service apartment and other investments (46.764.908) (3,286,781}
Receipts from Borak Real Estate Limited for Advance refund 433,000,000 66,700,000
Receipts from SFL Unigue Nebras Meghnaghat Pawer PLC 290 965,249 (1,094 606,381
Change in interest receivable balance — UMPL (51,297 630)
Gain on investment in shares . [1.350}
Dividend received during the period 742984 1.653.914
Increase/(Decrease) in fixed deposit receipts (20.349.419) 208,091 983
Net cash used in investing activities (B) 592,500,516 (228,545,416)
Cash flows from financing activities
Increase/{ Decrease) in term loan (217,697 970} 4,567,743
Decrease v short lerm financing 71,357,532 35397.271
Interest paid during the period 1295 520,581 (322,254,483)
Drividend pard during the penod - (880)
Net Cash provided by/(used in) financing activities (C) (441,861,019) (282,290,349)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) for the period (A+B+C) 36,884,031 212,262,135
Add Cash and cash equivalents at the begimning of the period 143,266,460 218,844 414
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 180,150,490 431,106,548
Operating cash inflow/(outflow) per share 41.03 (0.39) 2.46

The aceompanying notes form an negral part of these finaneial stenentents and are to be read in comjunction therewith,

.
Chief Financ{al OfTicer Chief Executive OfMicer

G St A,

Ditecto Independent Direclor Chairperson

Company Secretary

Stgned i derms of owe veport af even date anexed

Dated. Dhaka. Pl
13 November 2023 -
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UNIQUE HOTEL & RESORTS PLC

Unique Hotel & Resorts PLC
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the period from 01 July 2025 to 30 September 2025

Legal status of the Company

Reporting entity

Unique Hotel & Resorts PLC ("the Company or UHRL") is a Public Limited Company in Bangladesh. The Company was
incarporated on 28 November 2000 having registration no. C-41920{1279)2000 i the name of Unique Hotel & Resorts Ltd.
under the Companies Act, 1994, Subsequently, to comply with the provision of the Companies Act. 1994 (2nd Amendment
2020), the Company adopted the change of Registered name from "Unique Hotel & Resorts Lid." to "Unique Hotel & Resorts
PLC". The Company at first took approval of shareholders in the 20th Annual General Meeting on 27th December 2021 for
changes in relevant clauses in the Memorandum of Association (MoA) and Articles of Association (AoA) of the Company as
per section 13 of the Companmies Act. 1994; made relevant changes in the MoA and AoA. Accordingly the Ceruficate of
Incorporation, MoA and AoA have been duly approved and centilied by Registrar of Jont Stock Companies & Firms on 3rd
July 2022

The Company is listed with both Dhaka Stock Exchange PLC and Chittagong Stock Exchange PLC.

Registered office
The registered office of the company is located at Plot no. 01 CWN (B), Road no, 45, Gulshan-2, Dhaka-1212.

Corporate office
Corporate office of the Company is located at 51/B. Borak Mchnur, Kemal Ataturk Avenue, Banani, Dhaka-1213.

Principal activities and nature of business

Unique Hotel & Resorts PLC started it's commercial operation on 19 July 2007 with “The Westin Dhaka" which is a Five Star
Hotel in Bangladesh The principal activities of the Company over the period were carrying out hotel busimess through a
Management Contract dated 20 December 1999 (renewed on @ Apnil 2015] executed between Unique Hotel & Resorts PLC
(“the Owner”) and Starwood Asia Pacific Hotels & Resorts Pte. Ltd (“the operator™), now Marriott International. The Operator
15 knowledgeable and experienced in managing and promoting five star hotels and resorts and has (and/or its Affiliates have)
performed such services throughout the world,

In terms of Management Contract, the operator is entitled to receive base fee license [ee, incentive fee. program service fee and
mstitutional marketing fee from the owner on account of operation of the Hotel only, [n addition. under the contract, the
operator 15 entitled Lo receive centralized service fees for developing, promoting, operating, maintaining and upgrading the
centralized services and associated Starwoad technology

The Company owns an international standard hotel in the name and style of "HANSA, A Premium Residence” which has
started i's operation from July 2018

Considering the emerging business opportunity in this arena, Unique Hotel & Resorts PLC has constructed another Branded 5-
Star Chain Hotel namely the “Sheraton Dhaka™. Sheraton Dhaka has 248 reoms of different categories including Presidential
and Chairman Suits, restaurants, Bangquet Hall, Health Club, Spa. and Gym facilines Two restaurants and bunguet hall has
been operating since February 2022 through obtainimg restaurants hicense from Distoict Commissioner OlTice. We are expecting
1o open the said hotel "Sheraton Dhaka" very soon,

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

The Onancial statements have been prepared in accordance swith the applicable Inlernutional Accounting Standards ([ASs) and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (1CAB).
the Companies Act, 1994 and other applicable laws and regulations

Other regulatory compliances
The Company is also required to comply with the following major laws and regulations in addition to the Companics Act. 1994

The Securities & Exchange Rules, 1987:

The Securities & Exchange Ordinance. 1969.

The Regulations of Dhaka Stock Exchange PLC and Chittagong Stock Exchange PLC
The Income Tax Act, 2023:

The Value Added Tax and Supplementary Duty Act, 2012,

The Value Added Tax and Supplementary Duty Rules, 2016:

The Customs Act, 2023,

Dhaka Stock Exchange {Listing) Regulations, 2015,

Bangladesh Labour Act. 2006 (Amendment in 2013, 2018 and 20225
Bangladesh Labour Rules, 2015 and

Financial Reporting Act. 2015
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UNIQUE HOTEL & RESORTS PLC

Structure, content and presentation of financial statements
Being the general purpose financial statements, the presentation of these financial statements 1s i accordance with the
guidelines provided by [AS 1: “Presentation of Financial Statements”. A complete set of financial statements comprises:

1) Statement of Financial Position;

11) Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income:

1) Statement of Changes in Equity.

w) Statement of Cash Flows:

v) Notes 1o the Financial Statements, comprising a summary of significant accounting palicies and other explanatory
information to the financial statements,

Investment in Associates and Joint Yentures

Associates are entities in which Unique Hotel & Resorts PLC holds 20% or more (directly or indirectiy) of the investee and can
exert significant influence through representation on the board of directors, power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control of those policies. The Company has rights to the net assets of
the arrangement, rather than rights to 1ts assets and obligations for its liabilites. Interests in associates are mitially recogmsed at
cosl.

Joint arrangements in the form of Jaint Ventures are entities which Unique Hotel & Resorts PLC has esiablished through joint
control with other entities. Joint control 1s the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about relevant activities require unanimous consent of the pariies sharing control (IFRS 11 paragraph 7).

The joint venturers must act together to direct the activities that significantly aflect the retumns of the joint venture company.
Unique Hotel & Resorts PLC recognises a joint arrangement as investment in a joint venture company if the contractual
arrangement provides the Company:

- rights to the net assets of the joint venture company (separate vehicle, e, a separately identifiable financial structure
including separate legal entilies or entities recognised by statute},

- no interests over the ownershipfitle of the joint venture:

- no lability for the debts and obligations of the joint venture,

- the Company's share in the profit or loss relating to the activities of the joint venlure

Umque Hotel & Resorts PLC accounts for 115 invesument in associates and joint ventures using the equity method in accordance
with IAS 28 [nvestments in Associates and Joint Ventures {paragruph 16) Under the equity method, on mitial recognition the
investment in an associate or a joint venture is recognised at cost and the carrying amount is inereased or decreased (o
recognise the Company's share of the profit or loss of the associate and joint venture after the date of acquisition. The
Company's share of profit or loss ol associates and joint ventures is recopnised in the Statement of profit or loss and ather
comprehensive income of the Company. Distributions received from an investee reduce the carrving amount of the mvestment,
Adjustments to the carrving amount may also be necessary for changes in the Company's proportionate interest in the associates
and joint ventures arising from changes in the investee's other comprehensive income.

SFL Unigque Nebras Meghnaghuat Power PLC

Unique Meghnaghat Power Limited (UMPL) was established m Bangladesh on 25 September 2018 as a Public Limited
Company under the Companies Act, 1994 for "Power Generation" The name of the company has been changed from “Unigque
Meghnaghat Power Limited” to “SFL Unique Nebras Meghnaghat Power PLC™ with due approval from the Hon'ble
shareholders by passing a special resolution in the 4th Extra Ordimary General Meeung (EGM), held on 8th November 2023
The principal activity of SFL Unigue Nebras Meghnaghat Power PLC, (heremalter referred w as "Jomt Venture entity”) 1s 1o sel
up and operate power plants for generation and supply of electricity 1t has undertaken o set up SBAMW capacity power plants
al Meghnaghat, Narayangan). SFL Unique Nebras Meghnaghat Power PLC has already successtully completed the Reliability
Run Test (RRT) on 19 January 2024 and Commercial Operation date of the project 1s 20 January 2024, The registered oflice of
SFL Unigue Nebras Meghnaghat Power PLC 15 at 22/A Fmancial square, Level 3.6.7 Building no 22/A, Road 102 &103 Block
CEN(D), Gulshan-2, Dhaka-1212, Bangladesh

SFL Unique Nebras Meghnaghat Power PLC issued ordinary share capital of Tk 12,45.000 as of 30 June 2024 Out of which
Unique Hotel & Resorts PLC holds 51.49% of the ordinary shares. However, The total project cost is approximately USD 612
million The project cost 15 expected to be increased due to delay i the project period. The project has been financed m 2373
equity.debt ratio. For equity financing, no further ordinary shares will be sssued, Substantial equaty finance will be determined
by subscription of prelerence shares by lead parties namely Unigque Hotel & Resorts PLE. Strategic Finance Limted and
Nebras Power Investment Management BV | according to Sharcholders Agreement

6
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UNIQUE HOTEL & RESORTS PLC

Muoreover, According to the aforesand Shareholders Agreement (SHA) signed between Unigue Hotel & Resorts PLC, Strategic
Finance Limited (SFL), Nebras Power Investment Management I3 V (Nebias), GE Capital Global Energy Investments B.V.,
Individual sharcholders and SFL Unique Nebras Meghnaghat Power PLC, from the dale ol signing SHA, SFL, Unique Hotel &
Resorts PLC and Nebras will hold respectively 38.76%, 37 24% and 24% of the preference shares in issue of the Joint Venture
entity,

3,04.02 Sonargaon Economic Zone Limited
Unique Hotel & Resorts PLC holds 35% of Sonargaon Economic Zone Limited (SEZL), a company which was incorporated on
February 06, 2017 as a private limited company under the Companies Act, 1994 The aim of Sonargaon Economic Zone
Limited is to attract new categories of investment in addition to the conventional ones. These are: Texule & Garment, Food
Processing, Power Plant, Automobile, Petrochemical, Plastic and other Consumer Goods, Electric & Economics, Precision
Machinery Parts, LPG Plant, a broad range of light, medium, and heavy dustries is proposed for the site. The registered office
of Sonargaon Economic Zone Limited is at Borak Mehnur, 51/B, Kemal Atatrk Avenue, Banani, Dhaka 1213, Bangladesh.

3.05  Basis of measurement of elements of financial statements
The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis and therefore, do not take nto consideration the effect of
inflation except that arising from revaluation of land, building and machinerics as specified n note 5 and fair value of
investment in quoted shares as speeified in note 9,01, The secounting pelicics, unless otherwise stated, have been consistently
applied by the Company and are consistent with those of the previous period

3.06  Functional and presentation currency
Functional and presemtation currency items included in these financial statements are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Company operates (“the funchional currency’) These Nnancial statements are
presented in Bangladeshi Taka ("BDT") which is also the functional currency of the Company. The amounts in these financial
statements have been rounded off to the nearest BDT except otherwise indicated.

3.07  Risk and uncertainty for use of estimates and judgment
The preparation of financial statements i conformity with International Accounting Standards requires management to make
judgment, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses as well as the
application of accounting policies. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that may
require adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or labilities affected m future period

Actual results may difTer from these estimates Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing hasis.
Revisions of accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised as required by 1AS 8
“Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors”.

In particular, information about assumptions and cstimation uncenaintics that have a significant risk of resulting i a materal
adjustment during the reportng period is included in the following notes.

Note - 3.04, 9.02 & 9.04 Basis for using Equity Method

Note-4.01 & 3 Depreciation
Note-4.12& 6 Aumortisation

Note - 411, 20 & 38 Deferred tax asset/Trability
MNote - 406, 408, 10 & 35 Provision for doubtful debt
Mote-4 11,2403 & 38 Provision for corporate lax
Note -4 10 & 2605 Provision for gratuity
Note - 46 Contingencies

Measurement of Fair values:
When measuring the fair value ol an asset or a liabulity, the Company uses market sbservable data as far as possible Fair values
are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the mputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1 quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(1.c. as prices) or indirectly (1.e. denived from prices).
lLevel 3 inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data {(unobservable inputs)
IT the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a habilivv are categonsed at different levels of the fair value hierarchy.
the overall fair value measurement 15 categonsed at the sume level as the lowest level mput that 15 sigmificant w the entire
medsurement.
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UNIQUE HOTEL & RESORTS PLC

Going concern without material uncertainties

As per [AS | paragraph 25, a company 1s required to make assessment at the end of each vear to assess its capability to
continue as a going concern. Management of the Company makes such assessmenl each year The company has adequate
resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future and has wide coverage against its liabilities. For this reason, the
directors continue to adopt the going concern assumption while preparing (he financial stalements.

Accrual Basis

Unique Hotel & Resorts PLC prepares us financial statements, except for cash low information, using the accrual basis of
accounting Since the accrual basis of accounting is used, the Company recognizes ilems as assets, liabilities, equity, income
and expenses (the elements of financial statements) when they sausfy the definitions and recognition criteria for those elements
in the IFRS concepiual Framework.

Materiality, aggregation and off setting

Each material item, management considered significant, has been presented separately in the financial statements. No amount
has been set off unless the Company has Jegal right to set off the amounts and intends to settle on net basis. Income and
expenses are presented on 4 net basis only when permitted by the relevant sccounting standards. The values of assels or
liabilities as shown in the statement of financial position are not ofi-set by way of deduction from another hability or asset
unless there exist a legal right therefore. No such incident existed during the year

Reporting period
The financial statements of the Company cover the financial peied of three months from 01 July 2025 w0 30 September 2025
with comparative figures for the period from 01 July 2024 to 30 September 2024

Authorization date for issuing financial statements
The financial statements of the Company were authorized by the Board of Directors on November 13, 2025 for issue after
completion of review.

Comparative information

Comparative information has been disclosed i respeet of 01 July 2024 o 30 September 2024 in accordance with 1AS 1)
Presentation of Financial Statements for all numenc miformation m the financial statements and also the narrative and
descriptive mformation where 1t 1s relevant for understanding of the curremt perind fnancial statements. Where selecting and
applying new accounting pelicies, changes m accounting policies applied. correction of errors, the amounts involved are
accounted for and disclosed n accordance with the requirement of IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors Prior period's figure has been rearranpged wherever considered necessary to ensure comparahility with the
current year.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and labilities in the stalement ol linancial position based on current/mon-current classification
Assets and liabilites are classified as current when they are expected (o be realized. settled, sald or consumed in a normal
accounting cycle or within twelve months afier the reporung period. Assets and liabilities that are held primarily for trading are
also considered current,

Significant accounting policies
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements.

Property, plant and equipment

Initial recognition and measurement

Anitem shall be recogmzed as property, plant and equipment il it 1s probuble that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow 1o the entity, and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Property, plant and equipment are capitalized at
cost of acquisition and subsequently stated at cost or revaluation less accumulated depreciation in compliance with the
requirements of [AS 16: Property, Plant and Equipment. The cost of acquisiion of an assct comprises its purchase price and
any directly attnibutable cost of bringing the assets o s working condition for us intended use. The cost also includes the cost
of replacing part of the property, plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term debt availed for the construction
implementation of the property, plant and equipment, if the recognimion critera are met

I'he cost of self-constructed assets mcludes the cost of matenial and direct labor and other costs directly attributable 1o bringing
the assets to a workimg condinon melusive of inward freight, duties and non-refundable taxes for their intended use
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UNIQUE HOTEL & RESORTS PLC

Subsequent costs

The subsequent expenditure 1s only capitalized as part of assets when the useful life or economic benefit or both of that asset 15
increased provided that it is prebable that the future economic benefits embadied within the part will flow to the Company and
its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of day to day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recogmized in the
Statement of Profit or loss and Other Comprehensive Income as ‘repair and maintenance’ when it is incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Depreciation is provided to amortize the cost or revaluation of the assels afier commissioning, over the peried of their expected
useful lives, in accordance with the provisions of 1AS 16° Property, plant and equipment

Unique Hotel & Resorts PLC charges depreciation from the date of acquisiion until the date of disposal for the acquisitions.
Depreciation of assets begins when it is available for use, Depreciation 1s charged on items of property, plant and equipment
except land and land developments of Unique Hotel & Resorts PLC on reducing balance method

Category of Assets Rate of depreciation

Buildings and other civil constructions 1.25%
Hotel furniture 3%
Hotel equipment 5%
Office furniture and equipment 5%
Motor vehicles 5%

Revaluation of fixed assets

As per IAS 16: Property, Plant and Equipment (paragraph 31} alier recogmition as an asset, an item of property, plant and
equipment whose faor value can be measured reliably shall be carred at a revalued amount and revaluations shall be made with
sufficient regularity 1o ensure that the carrving amount does not differ materially from that which would be determined using
fair value at the end of the reporting period.

In conformity with paragraphs 31 and 34 of IAS 16; Property, plant and equipment, the land & land development and building
owned by Unique Hotel & Resorts PLC have been revalued by an independent valuer on 30 September 2011 to reflect fair
value (prevailing market price) thereof following “current cost method” As the fuir value of the assets does not differ
significantly from its carrying amount, so no revaluation has been made during the vear ended 31 March 2025

The car Val
Particulars of |Name of the | Qualification Date of _:J:;:I?: ?:I;ﬁ a m: ;;i:{;if;: g Revaluation
the ussels valuer of the valuer revaluation 3009201 1 on 30.09.201 1 surplus
Land & Land |AtaKhan & | Chartered 30-Sep-11 3,388,296 912 5,664,596,600 2,276,299,688
Development Co. Accountants
Building 30-Sep-11 3415829221 11, 420,259.375 6.004 430,154
Total 8,804,126,133 17,084,855,975 §,280,729,842

Other fixed assets were kept outside the scope of the revaluation works in 2001,

The increase in the carrying amount of revalued assets 15 recognized in the separate component of equity under the head of
revaluation surplus. However, the merease 1s recognized in profit or loss account (o the extent that 1t reverses a revaluation
decrease of the same assets previously recopmized in prafit or loss account. A sum of revaluation surplus is transferred directly
o equity in line with 1AS 16: Property, plant and equipment (paragraph 41) as the asset is used by the company. The amount of
the revaluation surplus transferred 15 the difference between the depreciation based on the revalued carrving amount of the asset
and the depreciation based on the asset’s onigmal cosl. Transler from revaluation surplus to retained earnings is not macde
through profit or loss.

Disposal of property, plant and equipment

An item of property, plant and equipment is removed from the statement of financial position when it s disposed off or when
ne future economic benefits are expected from 11s use or disposal. The gain or loss on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is included in the statlement of protit or loss and other comprehensive income in the period o
which the de-recognition occurs

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

According to IAS 36 Impmrment of Assets the carnying amounts of property, plunt and equipment are reviewed at each
reporting date 1o determine whether there 1s any mdicatton of impairment loss. [F any such indication exists, recoverable
amount 1s estimated to determine the extent af the imparrment loss Impairment loss 1s recorded on judgmental basis. for which
provision may differ in the future vears based on the actual experience.

An impairment loss 1s recogmized immediately o profi or loss, unless the ussel 1s curried at revalued zmount in accordance
with anather standard. Any impawment loss o a revalued asset is treated as arevaluation decrease
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Construction work in-progress

Property, plant and equipment under construction are accounted for as capital works in progress until completion of
construction and are measured at cost. Capital work in progress consists of building construction costs, costs of construction
malerials, acquisition cost of plant, machinery, capilal components of other equipment, related installation costs and directly
attributable costs mncurred until date the asset placed in service including the overhead during construction. In case of purchase
of components, capital work in progress is recognised when risks and rewards associated with such assets are transferred to the
Company. In conformity with 1AS 16: Property, plant and equipment, no depreciation has been charged on capital work in
progress as it is not ready for use as mtended by management

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attnibutable 1o the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessanly lakes a
substantial period of time to pet ready for its intended use or sale are capilalized as part of the cost of the asset. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs thal an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds as per LAS 23 Borrowing Costs

Inventories

Inventories (stock and stores) are measured at the lower of cost und net realizable value The cost of inventory is assigned by
using average cost formula. The cost of mventories consists ol purchase, costs of conversion, import duties and other non-
refundable taxes and ather costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consists of cash in hand, cash with banks on current and deposit accounts and cash with Brokerage
house which are held and available for use by the Company without any restriction, There 1s insignificant risk of change m
value of the same

Accounts and other receivables

Accounts and other receivable are initially recognized at cost which is the fair value of the consideration given in return. After
initial recognition these are carried at cost less impairment losses due to uncollectible of any amount so recognized. Provision
for doubtful debts are made where there is evidence ol a nisk of non paviment, taking mle account ageing, previous experience
as well as general economic conditions and ultimately the prospects of realizability. Provision is made at the rate of 3% of
rolling twelve months of average receivables. In specific cases. the Company makes provision based on circumstances
prevailing at the reporting date regarding the recoverability of receivables

Revenue

Revenue from contract with customers

The amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for goods or services when
(or as) il transfers control to the customer 1s recogmsed as revenue by the Company. IFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts with
Customers establishes a five-step model as follows

« Identify the contract with a customer,

+ Idenuify the performance obligatons m the contract:

« Determine the transaction price;

+ Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract. and

+ Recognize revenue when (or as) the entity sausiies a performance obligation,

Considering the five steps model, the Company recognizes revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance
obligation by transferring a promised service Lo a customer. Service 1s considered as transferred when (or as) the customer
oblains control of that service. Revenue from room rent, sales proceeds of food & beverage, space rental and shop rental are
recognized at fair value of the consideration received or receivable in the period during which the services are provided
Revenue is recognized net of value added tax, supplementary duty and service charge collectible from customers as well as
rebate and discount allowed to customers, +

Revenue from investment income
(a) Interest income
Interest on bank deposits and FDR have been accounted for on accrual basis

(b) Dividend income

Quoted and unquoted shares

Dividend income agaimst quoted and unquoted shares are recognized when the Company's night 10 receve the pavment 1s
established or after receipt of dividend, which 1s generally when shareholders approve the dividend

Preference shares
Dividend meome on cumulative preference shares are recopmsed on accrual basis Hlowever. Fnigue Hotel & Resorts PLC 1s
pot entitled to pet any dividend income for investment i preference shares tor the tme being
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Financial instruments

IFRS 9 sets out requirements for recognizing and measuring financial asscts, financial liabilities and some contracts to buy or
sell non-financial items. This standard replaces 1AS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The details of
new significant accounting policies and the nature and effect of the changes 1o previous accounting policies are set out below

Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial linbilities

IFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in 1AS 39 for the classification and measurement of {imancial hiabilities.
However, 1t eliminates the previous 1AS 39 categories for financial assets of held to maturity, loans and receivables and
available for sale, The adoption of IFRS 9 has not had a sigmificant effect on the Company’s accounting policies related 1o
financial liabilities. The impact of IFRS 9 on the classification and measurement of financial assets 1s set out below.

Under IFRS 9, on imitial recognition, a financial asset is classificd as measured at: amortized cost: Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) — debt investment: Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCH) - equity
investment; or Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL), The classificaton of financial assets under [FRS 9 is generally
based on the business model in which a financial asset 1s managed and its cantractual cash flow characteristics. Derivatives
embedded in contracts where the cost is a financial asset in the scope of the standard are never separated. Instead, the hybrid
financial instrument as a whole 1s assessed for classification

A financial asset 1s measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and 1s not designated as ot FVTPL

() it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by collecting contractual cash flows; and

(b) its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount cutstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that 1s not held for wading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes i the mvestment’s fair value in other comprehensive income (OCI). This election is made on an
investment-by-mvestment basis.

All financial assets not classilied as amortized cost or FVOCT as described above are measured at FVTPL, A financial asset
{unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing compaonent that is initially measured at the transaction price) 1s
initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly auributable to its acguisition.

Subsequent measurement
The following accounting policies apply to the subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets at FYTPL
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value, Net gans and losses. including any interest or dividend income, are
recognized in statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Financial assets at amortized cost

These assets are classified as Mnancial assets measured at amortized cosl. These assels are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange
zams and losses and impairment are recognized in statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, Any gaim or loss
on de-recognition (s recogmized in statement of prefit or loss and other comprehensive meome.

Debt investments at FYOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value, Interest income calculated using the effective interest method, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Other
net gains and losses are recognized in OCL On de-recogmition, gams and losses sccumulated i OCI are reclassified to
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Equity investments at FVOCI

These assets are subscquently measured at far value. Dividends are recognized as income i statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net
eains and losses are recognized in OCI and are never reclassified to profit or loss,

Impairment of financial assets

1ERS 9 replaces the “mcurred loss’ model v IAS 39 with an “expected credit loss” (ECL) model The new impairment model
applies to

+ financial assets measured at amortized cost.

* contract assets and

+ debt mvesiments measured at FVOCL but the standard docs not apply to imestments in ¢quily mstruments.

The financial assets at amertized cost consist of trade recervables, cash and cash equivalents, and corporate debt secunties The
Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to ECL from trade receivables
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Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrving amount of the assets. Loss
allowances measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following, which are measured at 12-month ECLs

+ debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date, and

+ other debt securitics and bank balances for which credit risk {1¢e the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the
[inancial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for accounts receivables and contract assets are always measured at an amount equal to hifetime ECLs,

When determining whether the credit risk of a financizl asset has increased sigmificantly since initial recognition and when
estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue
cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company's historical
experience and nformed credit assessment and including forward-looking information

Measurement of Expected Credit Losses (ECL)

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit iosses are measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls
(Le. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the
Company expects to receive). ECLs are discounted at the effective nterest rate of the financial asset

Presentation of impairment
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted fram the gross carrving amount of the assets. For
debl securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance 15 recognized in OCIL instead of reducing the carrying amount of the asset

In accordance to [AS 36 Para |2 impairment test to be performed if there are indications of market value declines, negative
changes in technology, markets, economy, or laws, increases in market interest rates, net assets of the Company higher than
market capitalization. obsolescence or physical damage, asset is dle, part ol a restructunng or held for disposal, worse
economic performance than expected and for investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates, the carrying amount is
higher than the carrying amount of the investec’s assets, or a dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of the mvestee

The carrying value of non-financial assets, other than mventories are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there
15 any indication of impairment. [f any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss
1s recognized whether the carrying amount of asset or its cash generating units exceeds its recoverable amount [mpairment
losses, if any, are recognized in the statement of profits or loss and other comprehensive income

Aceruals, provisions and contingencies

{a) Accruals

Accruals are liabilities to pay for services that have been received or supplied but have not been paid, invoiced or formally
agreed with the suppher, including amounts due to emplovees. Accruals are reported as part of accounts and other payables.
Other payables are not interest bearing and are stated at their nominal value.

(b} Provisions

Provisions and accrued cxpenses are recognized in the financial statements in hine with 1AS 37 Provisions, contingent
labilities and contimgent assets when:

- the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past event.

- 1115 probable that an outilow of economic benefit will be required to seitle the obligation,

- areliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provision 1s erdmarily measured at the best esumate of the expenditure required 1o seitle the present obligation at the reporting
date. Where the Company expects some or all of the provision lo be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate
asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain, The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement
of profit or loss net of any remmbursement, I the effeet of the ume value of money 15 material, provisions are discounted using a
current pre-tax rate that reflects, where appropnate, the nisks specilic to the lability. Where discounting 15 used, the increase i
the provision due to the passage of time 15 recognized as a finance cost Duning the reparting period. the Company has made
sufficient provisions where applicable.

{¢) Contingencies

A contingent liability 1s a possible obligation that anses from past events and whose existence will be confinned only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or mare uncertam future events not whollyv within the control of the Company. or a present
obligation that arises from past events but 15 not recogmzed because 1015 nat probable that an outllow of resources embodyving
cconomic benefits will be required to settle the obligation: or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with suflicient
reliability. Contingencies are disclased in Note-46

A contimgent assel is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confinmed enly by the occurrence
OF non-occurrence of one or more uncertin future events not whoily within the control of the Company. A contingent assets 15
disclosed where an mflow or cconomic benefits 1s probable - R
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Employee benefits

(a) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term emplovee henefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service 15
provided.

(b) Defined contribution plan {Provident fund)

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pavs fixed coniributions into a separate
entity and has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts,

The companies maintain separate defined contribution plan for its eligible permanent employees. The eligibility is determined
according to the terms and conditions set forth in the respective Trust Deeds and Rules.

The companies have separate provident fund scheme recognized under Income Tax Act, 2023 All permanent employees
contribute 10% of their basic salary to the provident fund and the companies make matching contributions.

The Company recognizes contribution to defined contribution plan as an expense when an employee has rendered related
services in exchange for such contribution The legal and constructive obligation 1s limited to the amount, the Company agrecs
to contribute to the fund.

(¢) Defined Benefit Plan

Gratuity

A defined benefit plan is a posl-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The employee gratuity plan is
considered as defined benefit plan as it meets the recognition critenia. According to the existing policy, the employees working
at The Westin Dhaka and Sheraton Dhaka premises who have completed the required length of services are paid gratuity which
is calculated on the last basic salary of the outgoing employees The Company's obligation 15 to provide the agreed benetits 1o
current and former employees.

Workers' Profit Participation Fund (WPPT)

Unique Hotel & Resorts PLC provides 3% of its profit before tax after charging contribution to WPPF in accordance with the
Bangladesh Labour Act, 2006 (as amended 1n 2023). A Board of Trustees of WPPF hus been formed and the required fund has
been disbursed for the yvear up to 30 June 2023 (o the bank account of the Trustee Board and Government Welfare Fund in
compliance with the smid Act.

Taxation
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred taxes [ncome lax expense is recognized in statement of profit or loss and

ather comprehensive income except to the extent that it relates 1o items recognized directly m eguity, m which case 1t s

recognized i equity in accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes

(a) Current tux

Income tax expense for current pernod is recognized on the basis of the Company's computation based on the best estimated
assessahle profit for the period at the applicable tax rate pursuant to provision of Income Tax Act. 2022, As per paragraph 46 of
IAS 12: Income Taxes, current tax is the expected tax pavable on the taxable income for the period, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacled at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax pavable in respect of previous periods. The tax rate used
by Unique Hotel & Resorts PLC as a publicly traded company for the reporting peried is 20% according (o the Finance Act
2024,

{b} Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognized as income or expense and included in the net profit or loss for the peried, Deferred tax relatmg o
items dealt with other comprehensive income 1s recognized as tax relating o other comprehensive mcome,

According to paragraph 47 of IAS 12: Income Taxes, deferred tax asset or habihity 1s measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply 1o the period when the assets are realized or the lability 15 setiled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Taxable Temporary difference
A deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except to the extent that the deferred tax labihty

arises from:

{a) The initial recognition of goadwill: or

{b} The initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which:

(1} Is nat a business combination; and

(1) At the time of the transaction. atiects neither accounting profit nor taxable prefit {loss)

Revaluations to fair value — Property, Plant and Equipment

According to paragraph 20 of TAS 12 Income Taxes. the revaluation does not affect taxable profits in the period of revaluation
and consequently, the tax base of the asset 1s not adjusted Henee a temporary ditterence anses This s provided for i ful|
based on the difference between carrving amount and tax base. An upward revaluation 1s therefore give nise to a deferred 1ax
liability,

Moreover. the transfer of excess depreciation or amortization from revaluation reserve to retamed carmngs 1s net of related
deferred 1ax according 1o paragraph 64 of IAS 120 Income Taxes
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Deductible temporary difference

A deferred tax asset is recognized for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilized, unless
the deferred tax asset arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination; and at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enlorceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and
they relate 1o ncome taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity,

The Company's existing accounting policy for uncertain income tax treatments is consistent with the requirements in IFRIC 23
Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments. which became effective on | January 2019

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company which have fimite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated

amortization and accumulated impairment loss, if any, Intangible assets are recognized when all the conditions for recognition

as per IAS 38 Intangible Assets are met, The cost of an intangible asset comprises s purchase price, import duties and nen-
refundable taxes and any directly attributable cost of preparing the asset for its intended use. Subsequent costs are capitalized
only when they increase the future economic henefits embodiad in the specific assets 1o which they relate. All other costs are
recognized i profit or loss as incurred.

Internally generated intangible assets including goodwill are not capitalised. Interally generated goodwill 1s not recognised as
an asset because i1 is not an identiliable resource (ie it 1s not separable nor does it arise from contractual or other legal rights)
comtrolled by the Company that can be measured reliably at cost.

Amortisation

Amortisation is calculated o write-off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values using the straight line
methed over their estimated useful lives, and 15 generally recognised in profit or loss. The rates al which intangible assets are
amortised are given below:

alegory of Asscls
SAP 84 HANA soltware

Rate of amortisation
10%

Earnings Per Share (EPS)
Earnings Per Share (EPS} are calculated in accordance with [AS 33 Earnings Per Share.

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share 1s calculated by dividing the profit or loss atmnbwable o ordinary equny holders of Unigue Hotel &
Resorts PLC by the weighted average number of ordinary shares oustanding during the period

Diluted earnings per share

For the purpose of calculaung diluted earmings per shares, the Compuny adjusts profit or loss auribuable 0 each ordinary
equity holders of the entity, and weighted average number of shires outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordmary
shares. Diluted EPS is only calculated where the Company has commitment Lo issue ordinary share in future at reporting date
However, dilution of EPS is not applicable for these financial statements as there was no dilutive potential during the relevant
periods.

Foreign currency transaction and translation

At the end of each reperting period in compliance with the provision of 1AS 21: The cffects of changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates:

{a) Foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate.

(b} Non-monetary items thut are measured in terms of historical costs in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rate at the date of the transaction

{c) Non-monetary items that are imeasured at faur value in a foreign currency are ranslated using the exchange rate at the date
when the fuir value 15 deternuined.

Fxchange differences anising on the settlement o monetary items or on translating monetary items at rate different from those
at which they were translated on nitial recognition during the period or m previous financial statements 15 recognized in
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income i the period in which they arise

Amount n foreign currency bank accounts and other foreign currency balances have been translated mto taka at the reporting
date at the exchange rale prevailing on that date and gam/(loss) have been accounted for as other incomedloss) in statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive imcome

Operating segments reporting

An operating segment 15 a companent of the company that engages 10 busimess activinies from wineh it mav eam revenue and
ineur expenses. including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with the company’s other companents and lor which
diserete financial information 1s available
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UNIQUE HOTEL & RESORTS PLC

According te IFRS 8: Operating Segments, the Company started with hotel operations. With ume, it diversified 11s busimess and
operations into power generation. The Company has determined s operaling segments considering nature of segmental
business. The business segments are managed separately and the operating results of the business segments are regularly
reviewed by the company's Board of Directors to make decisions about resources allocated to the segments and assess ils
performance.

Information about operating segment has been presented in Note-43

Statement of cash flows

The statement of cash flows has been prepared in accordance with requirements of [AS 7: Statement of Cash Flows. The cash
generated from operating activities has been prepared using the "Direct Method" as prescribed by the Securities and Exchange
Rules, 1987 and as the benchmark treatments of 1AS 7 whereby major clusses of gross cash receipts and gross cash payments
from operating activities are disclosed

Related party disclosures

The Company carnied out a number of transactions with related parties in the normal course of business and on arm’s lenglh
basis. The information as required by [AS 24: Related party disclosures has been disclosed in a separate notes to the financial
statements (Note 44),

Prior year adjustment and retrospective restatement

In accordance with IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, the Company corrected a prior-
period error arising from the determination of the functional currency of its joint venture, Unique Meghnaghat Power Limited
(UMPL), UMPL previously prepared its financial statements in Bangladesh Taka (BDT). however, upon reassessment in line
with LAS 21 The Effeets of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates, 1ts management determined that the funcuonal currency 1s the
United States Dollar (USD), as most revenues. costs, and financing are denominated in USD. The change has been applied
retrospectively by UMPL.

Accordingly, Unique Hotel & Resorts PLC (UHRL}—which accounts for its investment in UMPL using the equity

methad—has restated its comparative figures to reflect the impact of this carrection. The restatement affected the Company’s
Investment in Jont Venture, Retained Earnings, and Hedging Reserve balances.

The carrection has been applied retrospectively in accordance with 1AS 8 As required by IAS T Presentation of Financial

Statements, UHRL has presented (a) the current period as at 30 June 2025, (b) restated comparative information as at 30 June
2024, and (c} a third statement of financial position as at 1 July 2023,

The restatement had no impact on total equity as at 30 June 2025 but resulted in adjustments to opening retained camings and
mvestment balances as at 1 July 2023 due to translation efTects from UMPL's functional currency correction.

The summary of adjustments 15 presented below

i, Statement of Financial Position
30 June 2024

Impact of prior year adjusiment

viously ’ As Restated
Particulars o5 eyl Adjustments ARESIRe
reporied
Investment in Joint Venture 4,702,493 029 895,043 945 5597336974
Hedging Reserve 20,270,776 38,377,005 58647785
Unrealized Foreign Exchange Loss on Foreign Loan 853,719,552 (853,719,552) -
Retamed Earnings (8,078,522 847) 148.661.356 {7.929, 861,491}
Deferred Tax (2,682.303,729) {228,362,739) (2,910,666 488)
Net Asset Value Per Share 88,73 227 a1
ii. Statement of Profit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
30 June 2024
Impact of prior yvear adjustrment
Particulars Asgrexinisly, Adjustments As Restated

reported

Share of net profit/ (Loss) after tax of Joint Venture Entity, net
off deferred tax

(T9.018.673)

LO73,311.56%

Total net profit/ (loss) alier tax for the vear

(T9.018.673)

1,432,995 443

Busic and iluted Earnimes Per Share (EPS)

(027
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4.19  Events after the reporting period
Events after the reporting period that provide additional mformation about the Campany's position at the statement of financial
position date are reflected i the financial statements as per 1AS 10 Events afier the Reporting Period. All material events
occurring after the statement of financial position date have been considered and where necessary, adjusted for or disclosed.

4.20  Compliance with Financial Reporting Standards as applicable in Bangladesh
According lo Para-12 of Securities & Exchange Rule 1987, Unique Hotel & Resorts PLC has prepared its financial statements
in compliance with the following International Accounting Standards (1ASs) and International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by The [nstitute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB)

SI. No. IAS No. LAS Title Status

1 1AS- 1 Presentation of Financial Statements Complied

2 IAS-2  |Inventorics Comphed

3 IAS- 7 |Statement of Cash Flows Complied

4 IAS-8  |Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors Complied

3 IAS- 10 |Events after the Reporting Period Complied

[i] IAS-12  |Income Taxes Complied

7 IAS- 16 |Property, Plant & Equipment Complied

8 IAS- 19 |Employee Benefits Complied

9 TAS- 20 [Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Gevernment Not applicable

Assistance

10 1AS-21  |The Effects ol Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates Complied

11 1AS- 23 |Borrowing Cosls Complied

12 IAS-24  [Related Party Disclosures Complied
13 IAS- 26 |Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans Not appheable
14 IAS-27  [Separate Financial Statements Complied

|5 IAS- 28  [Investments in Associates and joint ventures Complied

16 IAS-29  |Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economics Naot applicahle
17 IAS- 32 [Financial Instruments’ Presentation Complied
I8 IAS- 33 |Earmings per Share Complied
19 IAS- 34 |Interim Financial Reporting Complied
20 IAS- 36 [lmpairment of Assets Complied
2] IAS- 37 |Provisions. Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets Complied
22 IAS- 38 |Inlangible Assets Complied
23 IAS- 40  |Investment Property Not applicable
24 IAS-41  |Agniculture Not applicable

51, No. IFRS No. IFRS Title Status

1 IFRS- | |First-time adopuon of International Fiancial Reporting Standards Not applicable
2 IFRS- 2 |Share-based Payment Not applicable
3 IFRS- 3 |Business Combinations Not applicable
4 IFRS- 4 |Insurance Contracts Not applicable
5 IFRS- 5 [Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations Not applicable
6 IFRS- 6  |Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources Not apphicable
7 IFRS- 7 [Financial Instruments: Disclosures Complied

8 IFRS- &  |Operating Segments Complied

9 IFRS-9  |Financial Instruments Complied
0 IFRS- 10 |Consolidated Financial Statements Not applicable
11 IFRS- 11 [Jomt Arrangements Comphied
12 IFRS- 12 |Disclosure of Interests in other Entitics Complied
13 IFRS- 13 |Fair Value Measurement Complied
14 IFRS- 14 |Regulatory Deferral Accounts Naot applicable
15 IFRS- 15 |Revenue from contracts with customers Complied
16 IFRS- 16 |leases Not applicable
17 [FRS- 17 |Insurance Contracts Not applicable
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UNIQUE HOTEL & RESORTS PLC

| Amount in Taks |
30 September 2025 [[ 30 June 2025 |

Property, plant & equipment, net
Cost/Revaluation

Opening balance 24,034 824323 23.990 275,619
Add Additien during the peried 2 R12.969 44 548704
Closing balance 14,037,637,192 14,034,824,323
Acenmulated depreciation

Opening balance 3,799,078 500 3,526.540.363
Add Charged during the period 66,736,055 272538 627
Closing balance 3,865,835,049 3,799,078,990
Closing balance of written down value (WDV) 20,171,802,243 20,235,745,333

Details of property, plant and equipment have heen shown in Annexure- A

Intangible nsset, net

Cost/Revaluation

Openng balance 13,872,395 13,872,395
Add Addinen during the period - -
Closing balance 13,872,395 13,872,395
Accumulated amortisation

Opening balance 2,774,479 1,387,240
Add Charged during the perind 235,641 1,387,240
Closing balance 3,010,120 2,774,479
Closing balance of written down value (WDV) 10,862,275 11,097,916

Construction work in progress
Sheraton Dhaka {note-7.01) 7,495,942 347 T.455.801,501
Seven Star International Chain Hotel (note-7 02) 1,.277,217,296 1.264,786.069

8,777,159.642 8,720,587.570

Sheraton Dhaka

Opening balance 1.455801,501 7439178383
Add. Addition dunmy the penod 44,140,846 16,623,118
Closing balance 7,499,942, 347 TAS5.801,501

Dhaka City Corporation {DCC), presently Dhaka North City Cerporation {DNCC), was the owner of 60 kathas of Tand located a1 44, Kemal Ataturk Avenue,
Banan:, Dhaka-1213 where DNCC construcied a three stored bulding along with ene basement on an area of 44 (forty-four) kathas of land with a foundatian
and there was also a vacant land of 16 (sisxteen) kathas. Subsequently, Borak Real Estate 1td submutted & tender proposal and the Technical and Tender
Evaluanon Comminee issued a letter of accepance Thus DNCC regesiered and executed an agreement with BREL o construct a huilding on the aforesaid 60
kathas of land [vacant and existing three stoned building) For fleors upte level-14, was agreed at the following ratio

a) Borak Real Estate Limited  70% and

by Dhaka City Corporation 3%

ONCC also executed o registered Power of Attorney in favor of BREL empowering and authorismg BREL to sell, mongage. lease, ete it's portion of share atits
oW

Subsequently, an Agreement was made between Unique Hotel & Resorts PLC and Borak Real Esite Lymied (BREL) on December 07, 20140 for construetion
and operation of a live-star hotel, which was duly submitted to Bangladesh Securities & Exchange Connmssion before going 10 IPO of Unique Hotel & Resonts
PLC According to that agreement, profit or lass from hotel operation shall he shared between the parties at the foflowing rato:

a) Unmigue Hotel & Resors PLC S0,

b) Borak Real Estate Limited 50%

Subsequently, a supplementary agreement was duly signed on September 10, 2011 between the parties with the change in terms and conditions as suggested by
Bangladesh Secunities & Exchanue Comnussion

In consideration of the above profit er loss shaning ratio, BREL has provided 160% space along with surrounding area for censtruction of the sawd Hotel namely
“Sheraton Dhaka" and Umigue Hotel and Resorts PLC has borne the construction cost of 1he hotel building and alse operaton related costs imncludmg but not
himuted to required equipmen, machimenes, furniture, household aricles. kichen dining. sports artieles. office equipments. vehicles, lizhting to be procured
enher locally or from abroad as may be suitable for runnimg a hotel maintaming internatenal standard

Moreover, DNCC renegotiated with BREL for the floar space of level 15 to 28 at the following ratio
a) Borak Real Estate Lomited  60% and
by Dhaka City Corporation 095

and according 1a the agreed ratio for level | 5-28. DNCC share of 35,640 581 for level [3-28 has been given from BREL space of level-6 & level-Y of the same
bulhng The ravo was appraved in the 181h Corporatan Board Meeting of DNCC dated Novemger 07, 2022 and [9th Cesporatien Doard Meeting of DNCC
dated January 07, 2023 Subsequenily, DNCU had requested for approval from Local Government Rural Development (LGRIDY vide lener ref’ no
46 207.007.0% 26 686 1004 dared March 02, 2023 for the space allocanon for fevel 13-28 a1 6040 rano berween BREL and DNCC
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UNIQUE HOTEL & RESORTS PLC

Furthermore, Board of Directors of Unique Hotel and Resorts PLC has reviewed the existing agreemnent between BREL and UHRL for Sheraton Dhaka and
have decided 10 continue the 5030 prafit shanng ratio with BREL at its 165th meeung dated June 26, 2023 In the meantime, a writ pention hemng No
74182023 is pending before High Court Division wheremn High Count Division vide order dated 0% 1002023 directed DNCC and BREL to execute the
agregment by shaning spaces up-to 20 floers and accardingly both the parties had executed an agreerment on 13 11 2023 Hewever, the parties will execule a

further agreement up-to 28th floor upon final verdict of the Coun

In these cireumstances, LHRL and BREL have executed 2 Joint Venture (Profit Shaning) Agreement on 30 June 2024 which 15 effective from June 26, 2023

with revised 1erms and condinons

Seven Star International Chain Hotel (Sonthpark project}

Opening balance
Add Addition during the period
Closing balance

Invenlories

Inventones -The Westin Dhaka (note- 8 01y
Inventones- Sheraton Dhaka

Inventories - HANSA - A Premium Residence
Inventones- Airporl Lounge

Inventones- Other

Closing balance

Inmventories -The Westin Dhakn
Food

Beverage

Operating supplies

Investments

Investment 1n quoted shares (note-9 01
Investment in Joimt Venture (note-% (2)
Investment in unguoted shares (nole-2.03)
Investment in Associale {note-% 04

I Amount in Taka |

| 30 September 2025 || 30 Junc 2025 |

1,264,786,069 ” 1,252,353,363

12,431,227

12,432,706

1,277.217.296 1264,786,069
78,272,403 44239956
21,051,253 24,768,597
13,341 083 12,908 456

165,250 158,361
1,254,863 1,718,341
114,084,852 133,793,711
14,952,225 10,339,388
47,276,354 57,856,744
16,043,823 16,043,823
78,272,403 94,139,956
271,531,924 244,635,937

R 086,596,961 7,785 867,917
87,786,000 87,786,000

3,206,751 3,307,485
8.455,121,675

ik

8,121,597.339

Investments i equity shares m dhfTerent comparnes are elassified as a fnancial asset an Gar value through profivor Toss as o was held for irading (0 was acquired
or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing 1t in the near future) The mvestmen! has been measured at fair value except investments that do
not have a quoted investment price n an active market and whose fair value can not be rehably measured  Investments that do not have a quoted investment

price has been

Investment in quoted shares

The ACME Laboralores Limited

Aftab Auomobiles Limned

Bangladesh Building Svstems Ltd

Berger Paints Bangladesh Lid.

Beximeo Pharmaceuticals Lid

BAT Banuladesh

The City Bank PLC

Charterad Life Insurance Company Limited
Dhaka Electnc Supply Co. Lid.

Dunch Bangla Bank Lid

Export lmport {Exun) Bank of Bangladesh Linited
First Secunity Islami Bank PLC

Glebal lslami Bank PLC

Grameenphone Lomited

IDLC Finance Lid

IT Consultants Limited

Islanu Commercial Insurance Company Limited
IMI Hespatal Requisice Manufacturing Limited
keya Cosmeties Lid

LafargeHalcim Bangladesh Limued

Registerd Office
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1 al cost In reference 1o para 371 of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, the gaun or loss ansing from change i the far value of the
mvestments |s recogmzed 11 the statement of profit or loss and other camprehensive icame

ook value

Fuir value

Fair value

30.09.2025 30.09.2025 30.06.2025
161,673,895 277,531,924 244,635,937
11,194,300 7,410,000 5,859,000
4,916,870 1742,147 2,152,980
4,393,730 1,582,000 1,442,000
136,547 438,570 1393235
12,882,142 8,260,000 6,027,000
42,392,986 24,369,123 24,793,345
6,933,393 5239715 4,047,830
22500310 139,726,925 117,001,612
933,620 308.200 303,300
970,608 T40.936 726,264
10.350,524 2,800,000 1,850,000
9,385,050 2,207,205 3225915
10,000 1,850 1,306
5.838.052 3,892,382 3045756
14419632 9,084,600 6,394,500
9,772,646 9822953 B016.433
420 924 Bd4
1,420 2790 2,392
08,308 188,000 [88,000
A3 400 2,208,000 1,900,000
2 .'.\.
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UNIQUE HOTEL & RESORTS PLC

Book value Fair value Fair value
30.09.2025 30.09.2025 30.06.2025

Mercamile Bank PLC 4976472 2,923 830 2,506,140
MJIL Bangladesh PLC 8349 08| 7,498,311 7.273.440
National Bank Lid 17,451,259 3,600,000 3,500,000
National Credit and Commerce Bank Lid 4.799,279 1.685074 2,178,871
One Bank Limited 2739468 1,711,628 1,597,519
Power Gnid Company of Bangladesh Limned 14,576,080 5,451 400 5,346,250
Pharma Aids Limited 23001 585 14,522 500 13,387,500
Prerer Bank Limited 3.021.659 1.513.600 1.608 200
Sena Kalyan Insurance Company Linuted 190 94 230
Sonali Life Insurance Company Limited 170 1,318 823
Square Pharmaceuticals PLC 19.265,597 16,342,365 15, 878.698
SouthBangla Agniculure & Commerce Bank Lumited a0 471 413
Union Insurance Company Limited 280 93l 809
Hest Holdings Limited 101,295 38,080 2,640
Asiatic Laboratories Lid. 1,720 3,117 3,337

[ Amount in Taka I

|30 September 2025 [ 30June2025 |

902 Investment in Joint Yenture

SFL Unigue Nebras Meghnaghat Power PLC
Ordinary share capital 641,050 641,050
Preference share 5.344,024.340 5.344.024,340
Share of net prafit af Jomt Venture entity (note-9 0201 3.1 16.830.866 2724709810
Share of other comprehensive income of Joint Yenture entity {note-9.02 02) (374912 295) (283,307,250}
Closing balpnee 8,086,596,961 7,785 867,917

SFL Unique Nebras Meghnaghat Power PLC ("Joint Venture entity”) was initiated among Strategic Finance Lid (SFL), Unique Hotel & Reserts PLC and GE
Capital Energy Investments BV, (GE) Unique Hotel & Resons PLC (the company) has subscribed for 62 76% of ardinary shares of Joimt Yenture entity as a
sponsor company Later on, Nebras Power, a Qatar based power company, came into the jount arrangement witl a commitment of providing 24% equity into the
project company through their Metherland based enuty Nebras Power Investment Managemen) BY (Nebras) As GE expressed s unwillingness to inject any
further equity inta the project company afier initial subseription of USD 3000, all the subsequent equity has been providing by Umique Hotel and Resorts PLC,
SFL and Nebras in the form of preference shares. Equity injection through preference shares s essental because of some covenant ino project agreement
resiricting any change in ownership structure of the project company before the lapse of sixth year of commercial operation

In these eircumstances, a Share Purchase Agreement (SPA) has been executed hetween SFL Unigue Nebras Meghnaghat Power PLC, Unique Hotel & Resorts
PLC, Stralewic Finance Limited (SFLY and Nebras Power Investment Management BV Based on he abovermentioned agreement, Unigue Hotel & Resorts PLC
fias agreed to transfer 11 76%; 14,641 numbers of ordinary shares @Tk 10 per ordinary share 1o Nebras Power Inve M BV i consideration of
total USD 24,068 800 to be executed by Ist, 2nd, 3rd and dth closing, phase by phase subject w the satisfacnon of the Condition Precedents (CPs) as per
agreement The sharehelders of Unigue Hotel & Resoris PLC have been duly informed throush & Price Sensitive Information dated Apnd 13, 2021 As such,
pursuant to the Schedule | of the SPA, the company completed the CPs of the first closing where Limque Hotel and Resons PLC transferred 8:82% (14,981
shares) to Nebras Power Investment Management BY an February 22, 2022 Subsequently, Nebras Power Investment Management B V' has remutied the First
closing money of LISD 9,694 188 88 including stamp duty to the bank account of Unique Hotel & Resorts PLC The Company has completed 2nd and 3rd
closing of the aforesaid SPA and further wransferred 3,050 (2 45%) shares to Nebras for a consideration of USD 10,911,587 including stamp duty. According o
the Share Sale and Purchase Agreement with Nebras Power Investment Management B 'V (NPIM) signed on Apnil 15, 2021, Umque Hotel & Reserts PLC has
sold 49%, 1e. 610 no s of ordinary shares of Unigue Meghnaghat Power Lid, for net cansideration of USD 3542145 (Tk 425,807,641) The cost of the shares
WTK 1018 Tk 6,100 (USD 30) The capital gam on sale of share amounts to LUISD 35 42,098 (Tk. 425 800 541) After 4th closing, the total ardinary sharcholding
af Unigue Hotel & Resorts PLC came down to 31%

As per Shareholders Agreement (SHA) signed between Unique Hotel & Resorts PLC, Suatepic Finance Linuted, Nebras Power lnvesiment Management BV |
GE Capatal Global Energy Investments BV | Individual shareholders and SFL Unigue Nebras Mechnaghar Power PLC, SFL. Unigue Hotel & Resors PLC and
Nebras will held 38 76%, 37.24% and 24%@ respectively of the preference shares i issue of the project company from the date of signing the SHA. [nvestinent in
ardinary shares and cumulative preference shares have ininally been recorded a1 cost

Sunce preference shareholders are responsible for substantially all of the equity injection. they have complete control over how the refevant aciivities are
implemented in proportian te their preferred sharehalding percentage as mentioned above Umique Hotel & Resorts PLC, SFL and Nebras take all the relevant
decisions of the Joint Venture entity yeintly, Hence, Unique Hotel & Resonts PLC, SFL and Melbras have ot control over UMPL and have nght over net fssels
of the Joint Venlure entity in proportion to their oedinary shares and preference shares on fully dilubion basis Under these cucumstances, Lnique Hotel &
Resorts PLC has accounted for investment in SFL Unigue Nebras Meghnaghat Power PLC as joimt ventre under IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements in equity
method as per [AS 28 Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures,

According to [AS 28 (paragraph 10), the myestiment in SFL Unigue Nebras Meghnaghat Power PLC {(Jount Venture entily) was recognised ab cest on inital
recogmuien and the carrying ameunt |5 increased or decreased to recounise the Unique Hotel & Resorts PLC's share of the profit or loss of and other
comprehensive income of the Joint Venture entaty alter the date of acquisiion Mareover. according 1o the AOQA of SFL Unique Nebras Meghnaghat Power
PLC and terms and conditions of the Sharcholders Agreement and Subscnption Agreement, the ordinary shareholders shall not recerve any dividend and onh
lead parties, namely Unigue Hotel & Resonts FLO, SFL and Nebras will be enttled 1o dividend on sweep cash basis in proportion of preference sharebolding
percertage until the canversion of all preference shares into fully pard ordinary shares In both scenzrios. Unique Hotel & Resorts PLC wall get only 37 24% of
the dindend to be distnbuted As a result, Unique Hotel & Resons PLC has accounted For 37 245 ol the net assets of SFL Unigue Nebras Meghnachat Power
PLC for caleulation of carrying amount of the investmentin the joint venture entiy 1o equity methed
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UNIQUE HOTEL & RESORTS PLC

Amount in Taka
30 June 2025
3 Seprember 2025 |
i Restated

902,01 Share of net profit(loss) of Juint Venture entity

Opening balance 2724709816 1,186,409, 748

Add Share of profit of Jaint Venture entity during the pened {note-% 02 03) 392,141,049 1,538, 300,069

Closing balance 3.116,850,866 2,724,704,816
902,02 Share of other comprehensive income of Joint Venture entity

Opening balance (283,307,290} (58,647,785}

Add Share of other comprehensive income (OC1)-changes i fair value on cash Now hedging of Jant Yenture (91,412,005} (224,850,505}

entity durning the perod (note-9 02 03)

Clusing balance !374!9”&95] 5233!507!290!

Amaount in Taka
O July 2024 10 1 July 2024 10
30 Sept 2025 30 Sept 2024

9.02.03  Total Comprehensive income of Joint Venture entity

Revenue 4.548.347.926 2882711000
Cost of sales {2.451.314.000) (938.223,423)
Gross profit 1.007,033,916 1.944,488.177
Creneral and adminisirative expenses (51,800,593) (43,741 676)
Operating profit 1,045,233,333 1,900,746,501
Other income E :
Finance expense (9492222 996) (874.631,226)
Net profit before tax 1,053,010,337 1,026, 115,275
Income tax expense . -
Net profit after tax 1,053,010,337 1,026,115,275
Other comprehensive income

Cash Nlew hedging Reserve- change i fair value (245,467 254) (617.104,174)
Total comprehensive income 807,543,083 408,911,101
Share of total comprehensive income of Joint Venture entity during the period (37.24%)

Share of net prafit during the period (37 24%) 392 141,049 382,125,328
Share of OCI-chanyes 1n fair value on cash flow hedging dunng the perad (37 24%0) (91,412.005) [229,843,110)
Shure of Total comprehensive income of Joint Yenture entily during the period (37.24%) 300,729,044 182,282,218

9.02.04  Asset and Liability position of Joint Venture entity
According 10 IFRS 12 the following 15 summansed Hoancial mformation for SFL Uingue Nebras Meghnagha Power PLC based oo 5 financial statements
prepared in accordance with [FRS

Amount in Taka
30 Jupe 2023

30 Seprember 2025

Restated
Currentassets 20,754,808 527 212033953 Mo
Non current assets 41568649310 GI114.610,048
Current hiabilities 10,225,303,040 11,348,165 342
Mon current [tabilities 46,492 188,690 48,797,727 210
Net assets 25,605,966,107 25,002,672,543
No divaidend has been recenved from SFL Umique Nebras Meghnaghat Power PLC during the penod from O July 2024 10 30 June 2025
.03 Investment in unguoeted shares

Eastern Industries Bangladesh Limited 185,000 185,000
Dacca Steel Warks Ltd (303 01) 87.552,000 87,332,000
Sun Service Linited 44,000 49,000

87,786,000 87,786,000

Unigue Hotel and Resoris PLC has investment in 58,368 no of shares at Dacea Steel Works Limited which comprises 23 47%% of the total sharcholdmg of the
Company, UHRL has representation i the Board of Directors of Dacea Sieel Werks Limued accordingly. Sull the Board of Directors of Dhaka Steel have no
control or sigmificant intfluence m the decision making ef operation ef the company. In these cucumstances. the Management of Unique Hotel and Resonts PLC
does not exert significant influence over decision making of Dacea Steel Works Limited, consequently the company does not acceum for 115 invesiment at Dacea
Steel Works Limned i equity method as per IAS 28 Investment in Associaes and Joi Ventures

Unique Eotel and Resorts PLC has invested in the shares of Dacea Stee] Works Limited In this recard, @ wiol petinan being No 7269 of 2021 was filed by the
Managing Director of Dacea Steel Warks Lul on September 03, 2020 against Secretary, Minsiry of Indusiry of Bangladesh and aihers. The High Court
Dhaigion of the Supreme Court ssued Rule Nisi upon the respondents to knew asto why a direcion shall not be passed to handaver the possession of the
property {immovable and mavable assets) in favour of the managenient and the rule s sall pending for hednng
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UNIQUE HOTEL & RESORTS PLC

[ Amount in Taka

[ 30Sepiember 2005 | 30June 2025 |
904 Investment in Associate
Sonargnon Economic Zone Limited
Ordinary share capual 10,500,000 ‘ 10,500,000
Add: Share of loss of SEZL durning the period (note-9 04 01 ) (7.293.209) 17,192,515)

3,206,791 3,307,485

Unique Hotel & Resorts PLC (“the Company”} holds a 35% equity interest in Senargaon Econemic Zone Limited tSEZL), amounting 1o Tk, 10,500,000, which
qualifies as an investment 1n an associate in accordance with [AS 28 - lnvestments in Assaciates and Joint Ventures In addition, the Company has pravided an
advance of Tk. 883,032,350 10 SEZL

The Governinent of Bangladesh, through the Bangladesh Economic Zones Authorny (BEZA) (Reference No o U3 07 0000 023 49.055 16 4076} and the
Bangladesh Investment Development Authority (BIDA), cancelled the hieense of SEZ1. along with nine other zames by notif dated 13 Apnl
2025, This event represents an incdhicator of imparrment under TAS 36 - Impairment of Assets, requning the Company to assess whether the carmang amount of
its investment and related advances exceeds their recoverable amount

Management has carried out an impairment assessment as at 26 October 2025 (subsequent to the reperting date) Based on the assessment, the recoverable
amount of the mvestment 1s Tk 1,127,552,859 and which is Tk 241,212,983 higher than the aggregate amount of mvestment in subsidiary 1s Tk 886336 875
{Value of equity investment in associate Tk 3,307 485 and Advance 10 SEZL 881,032 300

As the recoverable amount exceeds the carrving amount. no impairment loss has been recognized i respect of the Company's investment and related advances
n SEZL. notwithstanding the cancellation of the economie zone heense

904,01 Nel Profit!(loss) and Other Comprehensive income of Sonargaon Economic Zone Limited

Opening balance (7.192.515] (6. 386,107)
Add Share ef loss of SEZL dunng the period (nete-9 04 02) {100.695) {806,408}
Clasing balance (7.293,20%) (7.192,515)

Amount in Taka
a1 July 2025 to 01 July 2024 to
30 Seprember 2025 || 30 Sepember 2024

90402 Profit/iloss) of Sonnrgaon Economic Zone Limited

Revenue - o
General and Other Administrative espenses (243,836) (438,442
Depreciation and amorhisation expense (43,524) (L3n46l)
Finance expense (340) 11.208)
Loss after tax (287,700) (370,111}
Oiler comprehensive imeome 2 i

Total comprehensive income (287,700 (570,111)
Share of loss of SEZL during the period (35%) (LOD,695) (199,5349)

9.04.03  Asset and Liability position of Sonargaon Economic Zone Limited
According to [FRS |2, the following 15 summarised financial information for Sonargaon Economie Zone Linuted based on its financial statements prepared in
aceordance with IFRS:

Amount i Taka
30 Septermber 2025 H 3 June 2015

Current assels 22220834 22,052,243
Non ¢urrent assets 1,259,060,742 1.253,020.035
Current linbalities 1.272.119.316 1.265,622.320
Non cureent biabilities - 4
Net nssels 9,162,259 9,449,058
Na diadend has been recerved tram Soenargaen Economie Zone Limned duning the period from 01 July 2024 10 30 September 2025
[ Amount in Taka
| 30Seprember 2025 || 30June2025 |
{1 Accounts receivable
Recevable of The Westin Dhaka 241,591,579 250,695,247
Recevable of HANSA - A Prenuum Residence 5,880,627 8,876,607
Recervable of Sheraton Dhaka 73,005,952 39181310
Recevable of Adrpon Lounge 76,202 281 33038219
306,680,439 351,811,382
Less: Provision for bad & doubtful debis
Provision tor bad & doubtful debt of The Westin Dhaka (145,353,720} {144, 580.084)
Provision for bad & doubtful debt of Sheraton Dhaka (1,875,821) | (1,592 4641
{147,429.541) {146,179, 147)

Closing halanee 249,250,898 105,632 238
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Provision for bad debls 15 made al the rate of 3% of rolling twelve months of average recewvables 1 compliance with the poliey of Marnon Internauonal

Moreaver, toetal accounts receivable of The Westin Dhaka 1s Tk 250,695,247 and out of that, recewvable from Kanm Associates (customer) is Tk 141,579,465
(nvoices belongs lo FY 20192020 pre COVID-19 persod). Due 1o COVID-19 the Govt restricted imtemanonal Night operations and Karim Associates siopped
their eperations from March 2020 However, Korim Associates entered an agreement with Uinque Hotel & Resorts PLC in September 30, 2020, indicating they
will restore the operations effective from October 2020 and repay the dues in three equal nstallments through pest-dated cheques of Tk 47,193,155 cach
payable in Decernber 2020, March 2021, and June 2021 However, these scheduled cheques bounced due 1o insufficient funds. This raised uncertainty in
recovering the due balance from Kanm Associates In these ¢ : 2 af Umque Hotel & Resons PLC made speatfic provision for the
aforesaid recervable balance of Tk 141,579,465 during the peried ended 30 June 2021, However, as per our legal depariment recommendation, we proceeded
with the service of statutonly mandated demand nouce and subsequently, we filed separate Negonable Instruments Act cases on February 28, 2021 (Sessions
Case no. 982002021 ansing out of CR 281/21), June 16, 2021 (Sessions Case No. 14939/2021 arising out of CR 865:21} and September 13, 202| (§

Case No.2386/2022 ansing out of CR 2386/21) [or the abovemennioned cheques against Kanim Associates which 15 under subjudice now Updates of the cases
are as follows

! Sessions Case no. 9820/2021 arising owt of CR 28121 ; Charge framed aganst the accused, Kanm Associates and the case 1s pending for giving
deposition of complainant witness, Nexi date 1s 31 08 2023 for cross-examination of complainant witness

2 Sessions Case No. 149392021 arising out of CR 866/21 : Charge framed agaimst the accused. Karim Associates on May 12, 2024 The court has scheduled
a revised date for giving deposition of complamant winess on October 28, 2025,

1 Sessions Case No. 6214 of 2022 arising owt CR- 1386/2021 : Charge framed aganst the accused, Ranm Assooates on July 10, 2024 The count has
scheduled a revised date for giving depasition of complainant witness on September 09, 2025

This s considered pood and 1s falling due within one vear Classificaion schedule as required by schedule X1 of Companies Act, 1994 are as fellows

Sl No. Particulars AHOREHTo
3 September 2025 34} June 2025
I Accounts recervable considercd zood in respect of which the company 1s fully secured 249,250,898 205632235
1l Aceaunts recervable considered doubtful or bad 147,429,541 146,179,147
Total 396,680,439 351,811,383
[ Amount in Taka |
[ 30 Seprember 2025 | 30 June 2025 |
11, Other receivables
Accrued interest on FOR 26,562,638 46,383,404
Sponsor Support loan recervable from SFL Unique Nebras Meghnaghat Pawer PLC (note- 1101 250645611 38658718
Receivable frem Nebras Power Imvestment Management BV - -
Borak Real Estate Lid 1,120,389,310 176,976,136
Car rent receivable 163,333 263,333
1,403,760,892 1.352l18|=59|
1LOT  Sponser Support loan recedvible from SFL Unique Nebras Meghnaghat Power PLC
Sponsor suppert loan 219,716,000 465 383619
lierest receivable un Sponsor Suppon loan 36,929,611 73,275,099
256,645,611 538&8.? 18

SFL Unique Nebras Meghnaghat Power PLC successfully campleted the Rehiabulity Run Test (RRT} on 19 January 2024 and the Commereial Operation date of
the project was 20 January 2024, but the efficial COD letter was 1ssued by the Bangladesh Power Development Board (BPDE) on March 03, 2024 However.
COD hes been delayed and BPDHA has alse been delayed m setthing the 1nvaice in the recent ime Moreover, USD 360 mallion foreizn loan (partial disbursement
out of USD 463 million) has also been disbursed 10 SFL Unique Nebras Meghnaghat Power PLC on December 18, 2023 As a Spansor of the project. we need
1o provide a Spenser Support loan 1o the Joint Venture entity to meet their |5t repayment of the aforesard foreign loan which was scheduled on Mareh |5, 2024

SFL Unique Nebras Meghnaghat Power PLC wall repay the sponsors' loan ence they have recerved the invoiced monev trom BPDB
Moreever, based on the Agreement between Unique Hotel & Resorts PLC and SFL Unique Nebras Meghnaghat Power PLC for the Sponsar's suppert loan,

interest has been accrued at cul off vield of 182 days Bangladesh Governmen! Treasury Bill (BUTB) published by Bangladesh Bank in its website plus 2%
margin per annum. calevlated on a semi annually basis.

| Amount in Taka |
[ 30 September 2025 [ 30June 2025 |

12 Advances, deposits and prepayments
Advances (note-12.01) 3,490,431.319 3,715.715.947
Dieposils (nole-1202) 41,293,004 39,337,692
Prepayments [note-12.03) 14,295,732 7404051

3,546,020,058 3,762 455,691
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UNIQUE HOTEL & RESORTS PLC

Amount in Taka

| 30September 2025 || 30 June2025 |

Advances
Advance income fax (note-1201 01 ] 107327315 75,552,475
Advance to Gevt 175,500,000 175,500,000
Advance 1o vendors 59,563,142 B.906,693
Advance 1o employees 2,268,309 1,102,970
Advance to suppliers- The Westin Dhaka and Sheraton Dhaka 138,417 340 30,957,262
Advance for rennovation work of The Westin Dhaka 12,876,850 12,876 830
Prepaid expenses- The Westin Dhaka and Sheraton Dhaka 3,083,255 1,515.387
Advances for HANSA-A Premium Residence 145749 933,301
Prepaid commission for bank guarantee for Jont Venture entily 4,487,076 12,448,326
Advance against salary 109,250 125,125
Advance for Unique Convention centre 1,505,000 1,505,000
Advance against land 49,376,302 49,376,309
Advance against land of Southpark project (note-12.01.02) 1,273, 887,178 1,446,255.833
Advance for hotel and service apartment {note-12 01.03) - 260,631,343
Advance against land of Sanargacn Econanue Zone (08,074,274 008,074,274
Sanargoan Economie Zone Lamied 883,032 390 §83,032,3490
Other advances {note 12.01.04) 109 466135 84,920,209

3,490,431.319 3.715,713.947
Advance income tax
Opening balance 75,552,475 132,729,174
Add Advance tax paid during the period fer 1Y 2024-25 31,774,840 75552475
Add: Advance tax paid during the vear for 1Y 2024.25 (132,729,174)
Closing balanee 107,327,315 75,552,475
Advance against land of Southpark project {Receivable from Borak Real Estate Lid.)
Opening balance 1,446,255,833 1,446,255,833
Less Advance refund recerved from Borak Real Estate Ltd. during the peniod {l?2.363‘655}|| -
Closing balance 1.273,857,178 1,446,255,833

Advance agamst land includes the advance of Tk 2,600.000.000 for the purchase of 23 9373 katha of land at Gulshan Avenue, Gulshan-2, Dhaka-1213, from
Borak Real Estate Limited (BRELY 10 be used by the Company as proposed Seven Star Internatonal Chain Hotel However, admist the post covid economic
crisis, the Board of Directors reviewed the existing investment projects of Umque Hotel and Resorts PLC. After extensive review, ta complete the on-going
pregect development work smoothly, the Board of Direclors has decided to appaint a thicd party valuer namely Howladar Yunus & Co, Chartered Accountants
1o assess the fair value On the basis of valuanon, the Board of Directers has decided 1o develop the propased Seven Siar International Chain Hotel joimtly with
Porak Real Estate Ltd (BREL} Therctore, UHRL would gel back the aforesaid advance from Borak Real Estate Ltd and on board the campany as a joint
venture (profit sharing) partner of the project as perthe land ratio 43 34 (BREL) - 46 66 (ITHRL) This decisten was duly approved by the sharcholders on 22nd
Annual General Meeting dated [ 2th December 2023

In the meantime, Borak Real Estate Limned has siarted retyrming the advance money 1o UHRL and ©ll June 30, 2024 BREL already refunded BDT
1153 344,167

i Amount in Taka

| 30 September 2025 || 30 June 2025 |
Advanee for hotel service apartment (Receivable from Borak Real Estate Lud,)
Opening balance 260,631,345 2.270.920,057
Add: Addition dunng the pened - -
Less: Advance refund received from Borak Real Estate Lid. during the peried (260.63].345) {2.010.288712)
Closing balance - 160,631,345

The advance has been grven to Borak Real Estate Limited for the purchase of 185,575 03 sft floor space alone with properiionate car parking and comman
spaces of the Commeraial Complex namely "Acropolis” stuated at Plot # 344 1534, 164, 374, 35 and 380, Road? 35 & 45, Gulshan (Nerth) Cammercial
Arca, Dhaka Total advance payment agmnst purchase of the space amounts ta BDT 3919375000 as of 30 June 2024, Moreover, loan from Al Arafah Islami
Bank Lid and Standard Chanered Bank has been taken o purchase the atoresad Noor space an 5050 deb equity 1anio and to finance the develapment of the
project. Borrowing costs ansing from the aforesaid lean has been capialised which amounts to BT 310,897,758 as of 22nd Annual General Meetng dated
1 2th December 2023 Detanls of the sad loan has been disclosed i note-19

However, admist the post covid economie enisis siuation, the Board of Directors reviewed the existing mvestment prejects of Unique Hotel and Resorts PLOC
Alfter extensive review and series of discussion, the Board of Directors decided to appomt a third party valuer to assess the fair value of the project Accordingly,
a valuaticn work had been carried out by & renowned Chantered Accountaney Firm namely. MABS & | Panners, Chartered Accountants On the basis of the
valuation report BREL agreed to pay full advance amount of Tk BDT 3 919,375,000 along with the tar value gain of 413 245,057, the Board of Directors
decided ta get back the advance money from Baorak Real Estate Ltd This decision was duly approved by the sharcholders en 22nd Annual General Mecting
dated 12th Dacember 2023 Accordingly Borak Real Estate Lid has refunded advance money worh BDT 2,061 700,600 w0 Unique Howel snd Resons PLC
during the year ended 30 June 2024 and BDT 2.010.288.712 during the vear ended 30 June 2025
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UNIQUE HOTEL & RESORTS PLC

12.00.04 Other Advance
Unique Hotel and Resorts PLC pard BIT 88,054 859 ta Tl Aviation Authorny of Bangladesh |CAAB] 10 continue business activities of 1ts revenue stream in
the Aurpert {Sky Lounge) situated at 2rd floor of the Hazrat Shahyalal International Avrport (Sky Lounge) i 2021 The afl d 15 the lated due
balance from Kanm Associates to CAAB, which was supposed to be adjusiad with our future lease pavments for the Sky Lounge, Subsequently, CAAB has
recovered partially the due balance from Kanm Assomates and BDT 1923 1,674 was duly adjusied with our yearly lease payment for the FY 2022-23 In these
circumstances, considening a conservative approach, the management of Unique Hotel and Resons PLC has decided to recogmse full impairment allowance for
the remaining due of BD'T 68,723,185 as of 30 June 2024, However, if any amount 1s recavered m the future that will be adjusted with our future lease pavment
for Sky Lounge

| Amount 11 Taka
| 30 September 2025 || 30 June 2025 |

@

@
=)

12,02 Deposits
Bank margin 3,788,620 " 3,788 820
Secunty deposit 37,504,183 35 348 872
41,293,004 39,337,692
1203 Prepayments
Insurance- The Westin Dhaka (Propeny Damage & Business [nterruption) & 731,979 1,007 966
Insurance- The Westin Dhaka (Commercial General Liabulities) 2301971 2301971
Insurance- The Westin Dhaka (Terrerism insurance coverage) 233,667 233,667
Insurance- Sheraton Dhaka (Property insurance coverage) 1,930,671 2,803,351
Insurance- Sheraton Dhaka (Commercial General Liatwlines) 822 566 762217
Insurance- HANSA (Property msurance and Commercial General Liabilsty) 195.036 195.036
Insurance- Health coverage for HO associates 76843 79843
14,395,732 TA,051
13, Fixed deposit receipts
Fixed deposit receipts of The Westin Dhaka
Peaple's Leasing and Financial Services Lud 43,679 385 43,679,385
International Leasing and Financial Services Lid 231,000,000 231,000,000
The City Bank PLC 156,071.986 294,214,972
Brac Bank PLC 371,037,172 383,890,153
Prime Bank - 60902417
1,001,788,543 1,013,686,926
Fixed deposit receipts of Sheraton Dhaka
Brac Bank PLC 76.366.077 66,460,244
The City Bank PLC 41,577,075 30,235,320
117,943,152 06,725,764
Fixed depasit receipts of Head office
Seutheast Bank PLC 22,267,714 21,903.627
One Bank PLC 132,111,641 127,685,061
Umited Commercial Bank PLC 829,436,447 524,028,760
983, 515,862 973,617,448
Fixed deposit receipts of HANSA - A Premivim Residence
Eastern Bank PLC 21,632,000 ” 20,800,000
Erac Bank PLC 6,004,670 6,904.670
28,536,670 27,704,670

Corporate Office

Current and non-current classilication

2.132,084,227 2,111,734.808

Non-current nsset 274,679,385 2174679385
Less Lmparment of financial asset in People’s Leasing and Financial Services Lid {43.6T9.387) (43,679,387
Less Impairment of financial asset in International Leasing and Financial Services Lid (184 800,000y (184 8OO 00K

46,199.998 46,199,998
Current asset | 857,404,842 1.837,055,423
Closing balunce 1.903,604.840 1,883,255.421

The Company has investmenis in Peaple's Leasing and Financial Services Lid (PLFSL) 10 the extent of Tk 43,672,385 in the form of term deposits At present,
awanding up appheanon, Financial Instituion Matter No 1 of 20149 filed by Bangladesh Bank s penching agamst PLESL in the Honorable High Court Division
of the Supreme Courl of Bangladesh The Honorable High Court has not allewed the application but has insicad reconstructed PLFSL's Board of Directors
through the court order dated July 13, 2021 and also direcied the depositers net 1o ansist upon the Hoard of Directors or management of the PLESL tor return of
thesr money in next six {6) months The order of direction restraming Unique Hotel & Resorts PLC as a deposttor from demanding repaymen from PLFSL has
heen extended four times, lastly untl January 2024 Unigue Hotel & Resorts PLE 15 also not aware of any developments which would suggest that there would
nob be any further extensions of the interim order Unigue Hotel & Resorts PLC has also sought legal opinion from renomned legal advisor i this matter
However, considering the abovementioned facts, Unigue Hotel & Reserts PLC has considered s imvestment 10 PLESL 1 be a credit impaired linancial assel in
terms of IFRS 9 on a conversative approach and has made loss allowance against the principal receivable from PLFSL. Umique Hetel & Resons PLC made
10084 less allewance as of 30 June 2023 However, such allowance represents a prudent measure of accounhing an us part, it does not represent a waiver of any
vlaun aganst PLFSL
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UNIQUE HOTEL & RESORTS PLC

Furthermare, the Company has invesiments in International Leasing and Financial Services Lid (ILFSL) 10 the extent of Tk 231,000,000 1n the form of term
deposits. AL present, a winding up apphicaton by the depositors of ILFSL, Campany Matler Nu 299 of 2019, 15 pending agamst ILFSL i the Honorable High
Court Division of the Supceme Court of Bangladesh The Honorable Court did not allow the applhieation. instead had reconstructed ILFSL's Board of Dircetors
In these circl iwees, notwithstanding the pious intent expressed i ILFSL's latest plan of rebuilding, Unigue Hotel & Resorts PLC has made 80% loss
allowance agamst principal recervable from [LFSL on a conservative approach as of 30 June 2024 However, such allowance represents a prudent measure of
accounling on s part, it does not represent a wanver of any ¢lam agamst ILFSL

However, ILFSL has also shared their rebuilding plan on September 12, 2024 and according to their plan, the deposier companies have been given opportunity
ta convert their deposits (principal amount) 2t ILFSL into equity 10 the form of ardinary shares (25%) and nan-eumulative irredeemable preference shares (75%)
The final scheme will be submitted before all the depasitars and lenders for thewr approval within June 2025,

Amount in Taka
| 30 Sepember 2025 [[ 30 June 2025 |

Cash and eash equivalents
Cash in hind

Cash in hand- Corporate office 60,305 49,957
Cash in hand- Airport Lounge 40,965 28,763
Cash with brokerage house 10,420,094 10,419,643
10,521,364 10,498,365
Cash at bank
Umted Commercial Bank Ltd -Banan) Branch 3,047 191,439
Bank Alfalah Lid , Gulshan Branch 463,986 4,186,875
Eastern Bank Ltd.-Gulshan Branch 1,951,157 1,312,584
Eastern Bank Ltd., HPA- Banam 187,783 187,783
Eastern Bank Ltd -Dividend 2020-21 367,872 S67.872
Eastern Bank Lud - Dividend 2021-22 725886 715,886
Eastern Bank Ltd.- Dividend 2022-23 1,424,650 1,424,650
Eastern Bank Ltd - Dividend 2023-24 1,534,643 1,534,643
Prime Bank Lid - Banam Branch. {Unn-2} 24,853 24853
Prime Bank Limited -Banam Branch 2,636,486 1,036,080
Al Arafah Islami Bank Ltd | Motijheel- CD 3n930 4,204
Janata Bank Lid.-Corporate Branch 23,269 23,269
Shahjalal [slami Bank Ltd -Banam Branch 1.130 1,130
The Cuy Bank Lid -Kawran Bazaar Branch 374345 174,845
One Bank Ltd, 30806 EER- 11
Sonali Bank Ltd, Gulshan. Branch, Dhaka 15,877 15,977
Senali Bank Lid | Dhaka Reg. Complex Branch 12,472 12472
Sonal Bank Lid , Gulshan Hranch 50,000 30,000
Prime Bank Lid - Banani Branch- CD 5,259 3,259
Dutch Bangla Bank Lid 101,600 5,053
Agram Bank Ltd 1,358.210 437,194
Southeast bank Lid 1.452 3452
IF1C Bank Lad 11,661 1,661
Commerecial Bank of Cevlon 34,895 34,895
11,583,268 12,231,882
Subtotal 11,1M,632 12,730,247
The Westin Dhaka
Cash in hand 925,000 925,000
Cash nt bank
Standard Chartered Bank 6,406,759 2603313
Standard Chartered Bank CD 12,881,240 32:172.256
Prime Bank Limited- C/A 617,260 832727
Prime Bank Limited- STD 14,058,768 615.350
Prime Bank Limited {replacement reserve account| 27619652 5017313
The Cuy Bank Limited- Gulshan Branch 6,499,526 4,306,275
Brac Bank Lid 2R 484384 2,596,818
Dutch Bangla Bank L1d 224,057 224,403
96,791,645 38418673
Subtotal 97,716,645 39,343,073
HANSA - A Premium Residence
Cash in hand 642,080 912.593

Cash al bank
United Commercial Bank L1d

21,799,462

16,902,251

Prime Bank Limited 1.333.276 3144159
Standard Charered Bark 232,092 232,667

15,414,829 30,279.077
Subtatal 26,050,910 31,191.664
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UNIQUE HOTEL & RESORTS PLC

Amount m Taka

| 30 September 2025 ]

30 June 2025 |

. Sheratan Dhaka
Cash in hand 512,108 863,532
Cash at bank
Siandard Chartered Bank 14,521,919 10118429
Brac Bank Lid 69,578 170,385
Brac Bank Lid. €D 10,235,176 23,618,690
Standard Chartered Bank (replacement reserve account) 8,933 523 15,229 835
33,760,156 49,137,338
Subtotal 34,272,304 50,000,870
Total : {a+h+c+d) 150,150,490 143,266,460
15.  Share capital
Al Authorized share capital
1,000,000,000 ardinary shares of Tk, 10 each 10.000.000.000 10,000,000,000
10.000,000,000 10,000,000,000
B. Issued, subseribed and paid- up capital
294 400,000 orduinary shares of Tk 10 each fully pard 2.944,000,600 2,944,000,000
2.944,000,000 2.944,000,000
€. Shareholding position Y Mo of shares 30 Sepiember 2025 30 June 2025
SponsorDirecter 32.45% 154,406,704 1,544,067,040 1,544, 067,040
Companies and financal Institutions 29.09% 85,632,113 856,321,130 854,875,490
Ferewgn Individual & Companies 0200 592,508 5.925.080 7,446,400
General Public 18 260 53,768 675 537 686,750 537,611,070
100, 00% 294,400,000 2,944,000,000 2.944,000,000
. Classilication of shareholders by holding
Number of shares No ol shareholders |r No of shares " 4 of heldings J
| te 500 shares 10,935 1.570,946 0.53%
501 1 5,000 shares 4,675 8934064 3103%
3,001 1o 10,000 shares 778 5,859,723 199%
10,001 to 20,000 shares 398 5,734,787 1.95%
20,001 w 30,000 shares 127 3125656 1.06%
30,601 1o 40,000 shares 8% 3,162,900 107%
40,001 to 30,000 shares 37 2.642,030 [ 900
S0.001 ta 1,00,000 shares 78 5,408,758 1 8424
100,007 16 1,000.000 shares 85 20,837 456 7 08%
over 1,000,000 28 237,123,680 80 34%
17,250 294,400,000 100.00%
| Amount in Taka
|30 September 2025 [ 30 June 2025 |
16, Share premium 6,]3],931@-36 6,181,931.836

17. Revaluation reserve

Opening balance B 708.801,312 2,797,745 M9
Reahzed thraugh excess depreciation on revaluatien of assets and changes in tax rales (4,676,241 (88,943 537}
Closing balance 0,704,125,271 9. 708,801,512

18, Hedging reserve
Cpening balance
Share of Changes in fair value of cash flow hedgeing reserve of Jomt Venture entity (note-% 02 02)

(183,507,250}
(41,412,005
(374,919,295)

(58,647,785}
|224.851,505)
(283,507,290}

Closing balance

SFL Unique Nebras Meghnaghat Power PLC has foreign currency loan with the term of Secured Dvermght Financing Rate (SOFR) plus fixed margin interest
rale where SOFR 15 a vaniable rate It has entered into an Interest Rate Cap (TRC) hedge arrangement to hedie the variahle imterest rate linked SOFR for 70% of
oulstanding loan as per Cammon Tenns Agreement

The company has laken drawdown of USD 3o mullion from the Semor lenders on 18 December 2023 The mierest rate Tor the loan 1s SOFR plus 4 18% for
Devetopment Financial Insuttes (IXF1s) lenders and SOFR plus | 58% for ECA lender The vanebie interest porion (SOFR) has been hedzed with the IRC &
445 The uptront premaum of USD 13 24 sullion [BDT 1076 million] has been paid 10 Hedge Count andard Chartered Bank The uptront premim of
hedue al the start of hedie asreement has been recounized as Hedue Instrument-Cap which will be gradually amotized o full over the penod of hedge

As aresult, a Hedgimg reserve has been reported 1 Tt Venture entity's (SFL Unigque Nebras Meghnaghat Power PLC) financral statements to account {or the
changes in fair value of eash flow hedwing reserve according 18 IFRS 9 Unigue Hotel & Resens PLO (the Compary”) has accounted for is respective share
(27 24%) for the same on 15 ather comprebensive income
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Long term loan
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UNIQUE HOTEL & RESORTS PLC

Standard Chartered Bank- 150 crare (note-1901)
Duteh Bangla Bank Limited {note-19 02)

Lnited Commercial Bank PLC (note-19 063)
Agram Bank PLC {note-1904)

Al Arafah Islarm Bank Linuted {note-19 03)
Standard Chantered Bank -300 crore (note-19 06)

Current and non-current classification

Non-current portion
Current portion

Amount in Taka |

[ 30 September 2025 [ 30June 2025 |
98,102,032 98,102,032
713,051,656 744 830,360
564,191,265 617,501,942
837,636,269 919,483,068
2227,145,682 2277907463
2.932,500,000 2.932,500,000
7.392,626,904 7,800,324,874
6.037,968,727 6,255 566,607
1.334,658,177 1,334,658,177
7,372,626,904 7.590,324.874

Standard Chartered Bank Limited - Foreign currency loan

Name of lender
Security agenl
MName of facility
Facility ot
Rate of interest
Purpose of loan
Repayment

Security

Standard Chantered Bank, Singapore

Standard Chartered Bank, Dhaka

Term loan facility

LISD 35 mallion

LIBOR-4 50% per annum

Financing capital expenditure

5 years ineluding 12 months grace penod for poncipal smount that will be pard through 16 equal
quarterly installments afler the grace period, (For 3rd Tranche- S 10 nullion, 24 equal mstallments in
T years including | year moratonum perned)

i} Registered martgage on 24 storied five star hotel building {The Westin Dhaka} ancluding 1 bigha
and 4.25 katha of land on which the builiding 15 siwated along wath Mungs and fixtures and boundary
wall ete;

1) Personal guarantee of Me Mohd. Neor All, Managing Director,

1) Exclusive charge on recervables of the Company.

The Company had translated the foreign currency loan from USD to BDT at the rate prevailing on the closing date until 1he loan was fully repaid. Recegnising
of toreign currency difference in profit or loss, would result sigmificam fietious impact on s finencial performance which would also he misleading to the fair
presentation. Accordingly, the Company recognized foreign currency difference i translation of USD denommated loans to capital work in prowress of the
underlving property taking under cogmizance the substance of the above maiter

Heowever, Unigue Hotel & Resorts Lid has proposed to Bangladesh Investment Development Authority (BIDAY through a letter dated March 15, 2022 for the
early settlement of the fareign loan of U'SD 35 mullian via Standard Chanered Bank {LondonMairitios Singapore) through Standard Chantered Bank Limied
Dhaka, Bangladesh Subsequently with approval from BIDA through their letter dated March 24, 2022, Unique Hotel & Resors Ltd has settled the full amount
of abovementioned foreign loan on March 26, 2022

Standurd Chartered Bank
Name of lender

Name of facility

Facility it

Rate of interest

Purpose of loan

Repavimem

Security

Dutch Bangly Bank Limited
Name of lender

Name of facilny

Facility linan

Rane of interest

Purpose of loan

Repayiment

Security

(0]
C]
@

Registerd Office

Standard Chartered Bank, Dhaka
Term loan facilitv
150.00 crore
12 0% per annum
Finanemg canstruction and furmishing work of Sheraton Dhaka
0 vears includimg 2 years moratonum penod
1) Demand Promissory Note and a Letter of continuation for BOT 2,140 nullion of Unique Hotel &
Resons PLC.

11} Registered mortgage over land and building of The Westin Dhaka situated at Plot 0, Road 435,
Gulshan-2, Dhaka covenng the factliy amount. A second mongage has been created for BDT 1 3
Billion covering the additonal term loan facility over this Land and Building,

) Personal guaranee of Mo Mohd Neor Al held for BT 3764 5 milhon Addimonal Personal
Guarantee for BDT 1.5 tillion to be taken from Mr. Mohd. Neor Al and Mrs. Salina Al

Dutch Bangla Bank Lumted

Term loan

10000 crore

13%3 per annum

For completion of work of Sheraton Dhaka

7 vears including 2 years moratonum period

1 Registered mertzage of HANSA- Promium Ressdence (03 star serviced apariment) measuring
48,4200 sft (151 Noar te 1 2th Noor), including basement 1 & 2 with undivided and un-demarcated share
of (3.6843.69=737 decimal or 4 47 Katha land in Dhaka. Sub Rewster Office- Uttara, Mouza-
Unara RAC baing Plor Mo 03, Road Mo 1004, Sector 09, Unara Model Town. Dhaka-1230 and
(4.13+4 12)=8 25 decimal or 5 Katha fand in Dhaka, Sub Register Office- Uttara, Mouza- Uttara
ReA, being Plot No 05, Road No  10/A Sector 69, Unara Model Town, Dhaka- 1230 standing in the
name of Unigue Hotel and Resorts PLC valued at BOT 89638 mallion as per valuaton repon by
Narthern Inspeenon Co Ltd Dated 29-10- |9

e charge wih RISCEF

1) Personal guarantee of Chasrperson and Managing Director

348,

1) Registration of mon
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UNIQUE HOTEL & RESORTS PLC

The wterest rate of this term loan has been chanzed @9% from st of Apnl 2020 as per Banking Regulation & Poliey Department Cireular Mo 03/2020 dated
February 24, 2020 Morcover, Bank has furiher reduced the mterest rate @8.73% effecuve from Detober $. 2020 and funther reducuion m interest rate has been

@7 73% with effect from August 2021

However, interest an loan has been capitalized with principal amount by the Bank As a result, outstanding oan has increased from B 100 crore o BT
109,54 crore. However, UHRL has already staned repaying the loan according 1o the repayment schedula

United Commercial Bank PLC

Name of lender :
Name of facility .
Faciliy [rmt :
Rate of interest :

Purpose of loan

Repayment :
Security

Agrani Bank PLC
Name of lender
Name of factlity

Facihty hmit .
Rate of mterest

Purpose of lean :
Repavimem

Secunty

Al Arafah Istami Bank Limited
Nanse of lender

Name of facility

Facility lumit

Rate of interest

Purpose of loan

Repayment

Security

Standard Chartered Bank

Name of lender s
Name of facility 2
Facility [imnt

Rate of inlerest :

Purpose of laan

Repavment
Security

Deferved 1ax linbiliny
Upening balance
Delerred tax obligaton benefit) daning the perad

Transterred 1o retained carnimgs- excess depreciation on revaluation 1esene
Deferred tax obhgation during the period on undisnbined profit from mvestment m Jomt Venture anty

- ®

(<]
@

Registerd Office

United Commercial Bank PLC
Term loan

1040 00 erore

14%% per annum

For finishing intenor work, supplier payment and other pavments related to the project "Sheraten
Dhaka"

¥ years including 2 years moratorium penod

1) Registered Mongage of 30391 st OfTiee space alone with 3 khata 6 Chatak 1 st a1 Dilkusha
Motheel , Dhaka

1} 90,00,000 nos shares of L'nique Hotel and Resorts PLU o be pledged wihich hold by it's sister
concern aganst the approved facility,;

i) Regstration of mongage charge with RISC&F,

i) Persenal guarantee of Chawrperson and Managing Directar,
v) Undated securny cheque covering the entire facilities

Agram Bank PLC

Term lean

100.00 crore

12 90% per annum

For fimshing interiar work, supplier payment and supply of other local supplies for completion of the
project "Sheraton Dhaka

7 years ancluding 2 years moratonium period

1) 3.00,60000 no shares of Unique Hotel & Resorts PLC to be pledged which hold by t's sister
concern against the approved facility,

) Corporale guarantee from Borak Real Estate Linuted,

i) Personal guaranice of directors

Al Arafah Islami Bank Limited

Hure Purchase under Shirkatul Melk (HPSM)

450 40 crore

13 30% per annum

Taka 315 crore o purchase | 83557803 sf} Noor space and propertionate car parkng of “Borak
Acropobs” & project of Borak Real Estaie Lid and w0 complete the cvil, electromechanical and
finishing work for the purchased Noer space and car parking,

Pay off the principal term loan Lability of Standard Chartered Bank Led
T vears including 2 years mormanum penod for Taka 313 crore and

3 years including 12 months moratarium period for Taka 135 crore

1] Mortgage of 32,7 decimel land with 3,02,581 sfi building thereon

1) Personal puaraniee of Chauperson and Managing Direclor

url Personal guarantee of owners of mongaged propeny

Standard Chartered Bark, Dhaka

Term loan faciliny

300 00 crare

12 0074 per annum

Financing construction, acowsition of floer space, furmshing, upholstery and ether construction
related expenses for Acropols project

7 owears in¢ludmng | years moratorium perod

1) Demand Promussory Note and o Lever of contmuatien for BO'T 4,595,020,060 of Unique Hotel &
Resorts PLC,

v} Registered morigage over land and building of Westin-1 Hotel situated at Plet 01, Road 435,
Gulshan-2, Dhaka covenng the facility amount [mtial morngage held for BT 3.6(1.300,000

A second mortgage held tor BT 1500 mallion covening the additional factlity over tlis Land and
Building,

i) Persanal guarantee of Mr Mohd Neor Ab and Mrs Salina Ali to held for BT 3,764 8 millien

Additional Personal Guarantee for BDT [S00 rullion we he taken from M Mahd Noor Al and Mrs
Ealina Al

I Amount in Taka

|30 September 2025 [| 30 June 2025

|
]

3179,132.110
(39,247 204)
{1, 169.060)
TEAIRIID

2910666 488
24,720,060

3217, 14088 3,179,132.010

.}
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UNIQUE HOTEL & RESORTS PLC

As at 30 September 2025 Carrying . re§ 2 .
Taxrale amount Tax Base Temp. differenc [ habality
Property, Plant and Equipment 2004 £339.773 64 5.840.749,281 2499 624 360 499,924 872 40
Provision for bad & doubtful debt 0% (147429541 5 (147,429,541) (29,485 908)
Imparment of financial asse; 2004 (228479387 - {228.479,387) (43.695,877)
Provision for gratuity 2074 (62,187,729) g (62,187,729) (12,437,540
Unreahized gam/(loss) from investmen! m shares 15% 15,658 028 - 15638 028 2348704
LUnused tax loss on sale of shares of hsted entinies 13% {7,927 918) - (7.927.918) (1,189, 188)
Unused tax |oss on dispesal of assets 20% (43,938.928) e (43,938 928) (8,787,786)
A Closing deferred tax liability as at 30 Sept 2025 404,677,272
Closing deferred tax hiabiliy as at 30 June 2023 443,924 474
Deferred tax (income)expenses during the vear (39,247,204}
Revaluation of Land 15% 3,790,945 208 - 3.790.953,298 368,643,293
Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipmemt 20% 8102 266,384 - 4,102, 266,584 1,620.453.317
B Closing deferred tax linbilily ay at 30 Sept 2025 2,189,05%6,611
Closing deferred tax liabilny as at 30 June 2023 2.190,265,672
Changes in deferred tax during the year (1.169,060)
Ie_-r:::::mbuled prefit from investment in Jomt Yenture 20% 3116.850,866 p 3.116.850,866 623,370,173
« Closing deferred tax linbility as at 30 Sept 2025 623,370,173
Closing deferred tax habuity as a0 30 June 2023 20% 2724709817 - 2724709817 344 441,963
Delerred tax (income)expenses during the year 78,428,210
As at 30 June 2025 . . ; 7Derm.w o
: : Tavtate  Caurying amount Tax Base iy differen (asse)/ liabilty
Propenty, PMlant and Equipment 20% B.316,683.086 §,626,612,8%9 2,710,070,227 542 014 045
Provision for bad & doubtful delx 20% (A6 179, 147) - (146,179, 147) {29,235,829)
Impairment of financial asset 20% (228 479.38T) - (228,479 187) {45,695,877)
Pravision for grawiny 20% (52.975.974) - {§2,975,974) (10,395,195)
Unrealized gain/iloss) from investment in shares 15% {17.237.958) = {17.237,958) {2,385,694)
Unused tax loss on sale of shares of listed entiies 13% (7.927.91%) = {7.527918) {1,189,188)
LUnused tax loss en disposal of assets 200 (43,938 928) - {43,935 528) !8,?&?,?861
A Closing Deferred tax liability as at 30 June 2025 443,924,470
Closing Deferred tax hability as at 30 June 2024 419204 416
Defereed tax (incomepexpenses during the vesr 24,720,060
Revaluation of Land L 5%, 3,790,655 298 - 3700935 208 68643 2935
Revaluaton of Property, Plant and Egquipment 2% B.108,111.883 - 8.108,111.885 1,621 622377
B Closing Delerred tax liability as at 30 June 2025 1,190,265,672
Closing Deferred s habiliy as at 30 Jupe 2024 2,212,501,556
Changes in Deferred tax during the year (22,235 BR4)
[ l.:::ill:lnbutcd prodil from smvestment i Jomt Venture 2% 21724709817 5914 00817 544.941.963
Closing deferred 1ax liability as at 30 June 2028 544,941,963
Closing Deterred tax hability as al 30 June 2024 20% 1,394,502, 385 o 1.3%4,B02,583 278,960,517
Deferred tax (income)expenses during the year IGSIBBI.-H(-

21, Short term loans

Standard Chantered Bank-revelving loan

Bank Alfalah Ltd

Prime Bank Ltd. Banar Branch- overdraft
Standard Chanered Bank. Gulshan- averdratt
Al Arafah Islamm Bank Lirmnted- Bar Muazzal

i Due te eperator and its alfilintes

The Westin Dhaka
License fee
Marketing fee
Incentive fee
Program serviee fund

Shernton Dhaka
License fee
Incentive fee
Other reimbursable

Closing balance

Corporate Office
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Registerd Office

50

Amount in Taka

| 30 September 2025 [

30 June 2025 |

190,000,400 190,000,000
225,000,000 250,000,000
604,675,538 584,556,350
303,822 TH4 2377017615
499 900, 000 4456 400,000

1.823,398313

1,782,233,965

72,154,896 18413178
66,164,401 53.623 881
7,823,157 46,432,575
946,976 1,751,510
147,089,430 120,221,144
10,957,962 16,574,531
6,876,162 20,416,301
34821393 11,821 504
£2 655 468 68.817.336
199,744 897 189,038,480
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UNIQUE HOTEL & RESORTS PLC

I Amount in Taka |
|30 September 2025 [| 30June 2025 |

23 Agcounts payable
The Westin Dhaka

Agri Care Bangladesh 363,482 327460
Bandbox Linuted 1,700,833 1,700,833
Bengal Meat Processing INDUST 3.211,008 4,301,713
Expolimk Resources LTD - 402,885
Nakshikatha 2,000,000 2,000,000
Noor Trade House 4,414,074 4,007 342
Paragon Agro Lunited 1444 216 3,143 889
Cuality Integrated Agro Limied 3,026,171 9435229
R M Enterpnise 274710 326765
Other creditors 77,569,319 62 404 257

96,009 533 79,670,369

Sheraton Dhakna

A& A Enterprise 41 954 632859
AC] Foods Limued 138,000 138,000
Ahasan Metina Food 1798324 1,559,283
AKL Dary LTD 405,280 76,800
Allahr Dan Fish - 48 450
Artland - 865217
Bengal Meat Processing IND LTD 3,066,038 1,776,706
Cuy Edible Onl LTD 436,500 320,000
Flagshup Internauonal (PVT) Lid - 235,091
Hanay Foodspro LT 6.299 4.390
Cnher ereditors 19,384,342 20,825,318
35,277,335 26,482,315
HANSA - A Premium Residence
Accounts Payable of HANSA - A Premuum Residence 4,879,201 5,285 317
Closing balance 136,166,068 111,438,002

Amount in Taka
[ 30Sepember 2025 [ 30 June 2025 |

14 Undistributed/unclaimed dividend

Opening balance 4331425 281360
Add Dividend declared during the period - 471,040,000
Less: Daidend transferred 1o Capital Market Stabilisation Fund - -
Less Dadend pad duning the period - (469.522.1761
Closing balance nIiJJ 12415 -Ié.l 1425
15 Liabilities to intercompanies 30 September 2023 30 June 20235
Horak Travels Pyt Ltd 329,725,510 319,725,510
Unique Vocational Training Centre 119,023 814 119023 814
Purrima Constructions Lad | 86,005 968 186,095,998
HANSA Management Lid 0.824.177 9824177
Unigue Ceramics Industries Lid 89 029316 29,089 316
733 758,815 733,758,815
16. Oiher accruals and payables 30 Seprember 2023 30 June 2025
Taxes, deposis and other crediors (note-20 01 135,442 0896 117322762
Agcrued expenses (note-26.021 411,060,060 396,672,981
Provision for corporate tax {note-26.03) 149,734,627 T16AGEATY
Provision for Workers' Profit Participation Fund (WPTPT) {note-26 04) 2,916,029 2,532,736
Laahility to directors and shareholders 720,592,579 720,592,579
Provision for gratuity (note-20.05) 62,187,729 $2,975.974
Liatuluy for finance cost R09 255 672 216,276,113
Pavable to Unique Eastern (Pvt.) Ltd H99.174.713 643,174,713
Orther pavables 376,204.467 470,841,238

3.3006,568,271 3342796 554

Corporate Office Registerd Office
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UNIQUE HOTEL & RESORTS PLC

| Amount 1n Taka |
[ 30 September 2035 [ 30 June 2025 |

26.01  Taxes, deposits and other ereditors
The Westin Dhaks
Security deposits from suppliers 8,340,000 10 460,000
Security deposits fram tenants 2242420 2242420
Service charge pavable 21,527,693 14,923,210
Breakage fund and others 4,502 638 4,710,306
VAT payable 22 446,924 13,484,155
Tax payable on management fees 16,138,540 13,204,544
75,198,217 69,024,636
Sheratan Dhaka
Service charge payable 7,623,799 5,485 350
Security deposits from suppliers 2,350,000 2,250,000
VAT payable 7,905,534 1,657,948
Supplementary duty payabla 74 969 55,715
Advance recerved from customers 13,458,232 10,701,717
32,363,593 12,150,921
ITANSA - A Premium Residence
Service charge payable 25,110,647 24,217,253
Secunty depasits from suppliers 30,000 30,000
VAT payables 2,488,290 1,701,740
TS payables- suppliers 75,057 K0 346
Supplementary duty payable 82,850 44,100
City tax payahble 89,443 73,757
27,880,286 26,147,197
Closing balance 135,442,096 117,322,762
Amount in Taka |
[ 30Seprember2025 [ 30June 2025 |
26,02 Accrued expenses
The Westin Dhaka
Salaries, wages, bonus and ather benefns 4,157,353 2,737,965
Accruals for utility services 9.717.320 7.273.116
Acerual for Marmot Banvoy 128.7706,295 129,299,007
Aecrual for Elﬁpl:')}'ﬂ.‘. survey and vacation 4,369 360 4,106,752
Accrual for Marnoit Reimbursables-OFB Iny 163.735.658 134,137,753
. Advance received for tower rent and Gym membership 17077375 12,644,983
Audn fee pavable 720,041 480,001
Other accruals 1,460,909 4,727,180
332054171 315,426,755
Sheraton Dhaka
Salaries, wages. bonus and ether benciits 4,262,355 4925923
Aceruals for utility servaices 11,282 048 11,204,005
Advance recerved from tower rent and workout 4.431,187 3915332
Audit fee payable 637,900 1.086,350
Other accruals 9,179,086 14,129,030
30,168 316 35,260,751
Oihers
Accrued expenses of HANSA - A Premium Residence 10,763,359 9910750
Holding tax payable 20,022,981 19,022,981
Accrued expenses of corporate offiee 18,050,933 17,051,744
48,837,474 45,985 474
Closing balance 411,060,060 396,672,980
26,03 Provision for corporate tax
Openumng balance 116404 439 168,157,453
Add Income tax expense for the period (Annexure-B) 25,842,838 T3, 48B 810
Add Underprovision for tax pavable for 1Y 2022-23 (AY: 2023-24 7487330 TARY 350
Less Income tax adjusted during the penod for [V 2023-24 (AY ) 2024-25) = {132,729, 174}
Closing balance 149,734,627 IIB.%
3l
Corporate Office Registerd Office
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UNIQUE HOTEL & RESORTS PLC
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Corporate Office

1604 Provision for Workers' Profit Participation Fund (WPFF)
Opemng balance
Add: Provision made durimg the penod (note-36)
Add: Recerved during the penied
Less. Paid 1o the Worker's Profit Participation Fund
Closing balance

[ Amount in Taka |
|

| 30 September 20235

[ 30June 2025

2,532,739 31,659, | 39
383,290

; (29,126,421}

2,916,029 2,532,739
==

Aceording 10 a legal opinion from renowned lawyer, m light of section 119 (31 of the Comprnes Act, 1994 (with amendmenis) and section 233 (Cha) of the
Bangladesh Labor Act, 2006 (with amendmenis), Unique Hotel and Resorts PLC has considered profits ansing {rom business operations in ealeulation of profit
distnbutable to WPPF fund Deailed caleulation for protit distnbutable 1o WEFPF fund has been disclosed in Note- 36

26,05 Provision for gratuity

Operung balance

Add: Provision made during the penod

Less Adustment for overacerual during the period
Less: Payment made duning 1he perind

Clasing balance

7. Revenue
Revenue from The Westin Dhaka

50,268 869 30,242,177
7212410 7212410
{6R8.950) (6R8 950

{406, 768) (496, 768)
6212955%1 56'2681869

Amount in Taka
al July 202510 1 July 2024 10

30 September 2025 l 30 September 2024

Rooms 201,664,479 122,526,928
Feod and beverage 242,408,508 138,564,094
Minor eperating department (MOD) 19,176,152 15,463,347
Space renlal 6,690,075 6,519.674
Shop rent 2,752 740 3,811,740
472,692,154 306,885 TR
Revenue from Sheraton Dhaka
Food and beverage 189,519,535 87631172
Minor operating depariment {MOD) 2,709.420 3623179
Space rental 15.240.035 2,837,520
[ncome from simulation evenis 7,904,642 770190
215,373,682 100,862,071
Revenue from HANSA - A Preminm Residence
Rooms 32,122,642 21,564,384
[ood and beverage 9617612 8,228,337
Minor operating department (MOD) 3,135,904 3,164,350
44,876,158 32,957,071
Total revenue ?3‘2‘1?41,99-1 44&704325
28 Costs of sales (COS)
Cost of sales of The Westin Dhaka
. 01 July 2025 10 30 Sepiember 2023 B July 2024 10
JEHETIgRS Rooms Food & beverage Hlinor Total 30 September 2024
aperaling dept
Salary, wages, bonus and benelils 4.46092| 17,813,437 2,396,294 24,670,652 18,545,301
Cost of materials & other related = 76,025 480 67,883 76093 374 46, (08, 504
Operating supplics 1,017,188 4,262.387 540,243 5829818 4,239,349
Laundry, dry cleanimg and uniforms 1,798,804 1,975.994 319,081 4,093 879 3,792,718
Complementary guest services 9184476 = 160,270 9,344 746 3,506,944
Linen, china. glass ete. = 67,735 Z 467,755 .
In-house TV | video, movies, music e1e - - - - 208,001
Travel agents commissian 1713848 309,341 4083180 2049 429
Traveling and ¢ alion - 1,335,781 1,950 1.257.73) 4,106
Alrpart eounter charge 235,205 ¥ 235,205 1,239.472
Fees and purchase 16,916 - % 36,916 70,234
Room amenities (Guest supplies) 3680317 a10,163 209118 4,499 598 B6,239
Decoration & tramnimg 78,488 G870 % 139,358 21,333
Entenainment 271,666 203,963 . 565 629 1332122
Other expenses 1.741.519 | 032 368 6,150 2780043 119,905
Subtetal 26,219.348 L04.167,548 3,710,598 134,097,894 H2.881,657

Registerd Office
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UNIQUE HOTEL & RESORTS PLC

Cost of sales of Sheraton Dhaka

01 July 2025 10 30 Sepember 2025

Particulars - - Munor ; Bl luljzad

Rooms Food & beverage Total 30 September 2024
aperating dept
Salary, wages, bonus and benefits 2,363 870 18 840,743 391 680 21 .650,293 16,842 730
Cost of marerials & other related e 61,840,123 . 6,840,323 27,187,175
Qperating sups 1,032,793 4,153,137 122,230 5,308,160 1.800.209
Laundry, dry cleaning and uniforms 194,538 414814 1.907 612,259 474,004
Compl ¥ guest services 2,909 13165 - 16,164 61,191
Traveling and e« - 18 200 - 38,200 7000
ln-house TV, video, movies, music ete. 356,250 00,000 - 756,250 468,750
Linen, china, glass etc - 148 458 = 148 458 14,938
Decaration 240.784 71392 - 312,375 131,033
Simulaton expenses 183,198 183,195 1,192 422
Other expenses 73,577 241,505 128314 443 396 277.991
Subtotal 4,266,810 86,211,938 330,328 91,309,078 50,057,441
Cost of sales ol HHANSA by UHRL
OF Tuly 2025 10 30 Sepiember 2025

Particulars : I Minor 0 July 203410

Rooms Food & beverage Total 30 September 2024
aperating dept

Salary, wages, bonus and benefits 1,406,043 1,577,900 195 081 3,179,024 3,38 838
Cperating expenses 872 3 3,163,118 148,065 4,183.876 4,813,144
Sub total 2,278.637 4,741,118 343,146 7,362,900 8,194,981
Total cost of sales 32,764,794 195,120,603 1,884,472 132,769,870 141,134,082

Administrative and other general expenses

Administrative and other general expenses of The Westin Dhaka
Operators and its affiliated company fees {nole-29.01)
Admimstrative and general expenses (note-29.02)

Repais and mainiepance (note-29.03)

Advertising, promation and pubhe relatians (note-29 04)
Infurmation and Telecommunicalions systems [nete-25103)

Administeative and other general expenses of Sheraton Dhaka
Salary, wages, bonus & henefits

Operators and 115 affiliated company fees

Admuimstrative and general expenses

Repans and imaintenance

Advertising, promation and public relations

Information and Telecammunications systems

Administrative and nther general expensces of HANSA - A Preminm Residence
Salary, wages, bonus & benefits

Admimistrative and general expenses

Repaurs and maintenance

Advertsing, promation and public relatons

Infarmation and Telecommunications systems

Total administrative and olher expenses

Operators and its alTiliated company fees (The Westin Dhaka)
License fee (note-29.01 01)
Incentive fee (note-29. (1] 02}

License fee
Payable 1o Starwood Asa Pacific Howels & Resons Pre Lid (now Mamson Internationaly

Registerd Office
(5] .
(L]
@

Amount in Taka

OF July 2025 10
30 Seprember 2025

1 July 2024 10
30 September 2024

22613451 14,050,076
30,711,357 22,630,994
49544418 43,362,844
39,138,006 19,909,460
5,096,597 5,893 399
147,103,829 105,846,773
6,572,452 2.810,568
6,980,449 1,361,520
11,522,790 10.129.216
37,520.620 34,911,086
18,534,509 £ 0300401
3755271 4,102,745
44,901,000 59,345,174
2,896,731 2837002
1,854,648 | 514,831
4387412 1129276
193,232 208,827
119,683 70,778
0,651,706 8,770,716
241,686,624 173,962,663
9,486,300 ]l 6,102,887
13,127,150 7,947,189
613481 14.050.076
9,486,300 6,102,887
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UNIQUE HOTEL & RESORTS PLC

Amount in Taka
U1 July 2025 to O July 2024 te

30 September 2025 || 30 September 2024
290102 Incentive fee
Payable to Starwood Asia Pacific Hotels & Resons Pte Lid. tnow Marriott International)
Gross operating profit (GOP} 218,785 816 132,453,147
Incentive fee @ 6% on GOP 13,127,150 7,947,189
2902 Administrative and general expenses {The Westin Dhaka)
Salari.s, wages, bonus and benelits 14,505 652 8.575.896
Operating supplies 446,244 784,370
Postage 260,248 35,788
Fravel and commumcation 1,372,429 188,973
Entertainment 691 868 560,937
Security services 5,583,073 6,215,480
Internal audit fee 240,000 125,000
Legal and professional charpes (342,081) 993 665
Uniforms 31,096 7875
Credit card commsston 4,586,745 2 E42.579
Recruitment and traiming 1,466,688 B24,149
Permuts and heense fee 08,339 313,454
Bank charges 75,397 140,675
Insurance Premium 942,717 441,000
Other expenses 241,341 151
30,711,357 22,630,994
1903 Repairs and maintenance {The Westin Dhaka)
Salaries, wages, bonus and benefits 2.671,222 1,216,681
Electrie bulbs 295,554 171,921
Painting and decorations 320,862 29,150
Travel and communication 6821 9,761
Elzciricity expenses 34211589 29,040,722
Fuel expenses 369,824 215,041
Equipment rental (31,625 60,226
Repair and maintenance 5.084,206 2.916,503
Laundry equipments 25.000 100,200
Lacks and keys 44,842 -
Operating supplies 653,591 127611
Plumbing charge 57,637 194,950
Propine gas 2,116,475 4.607.229
Waste remeval expenses 3,600 £1,624
Water treatment and pest centrol 3022882 3049070
Laundry, dry cleaming and uriforms 11,751 1,767
Other expenses A58 187 618 281
49,544,418 43,362,844
2904 Advertising, promotion and public relatian (The Westin Dhaka)
Salaries. wages, bonus and benetins 4032081 3644168
Operating supplies 45,460 19.610
Travel and communication 345518 37984
Entertainment A1 815 230,055
Marpott Bonvoy expenses 2.608.044 4,142,590
Institutional markenng fee 11,264,982 7247179
Program service fund 3405 000 1,053,601
Oiher expenses 174,333 {410,546)
Digital Marketing fee 402,247 740,319
Siuns, events and funcuon 9,817,726 1,184,490
39,138,006 19,909,460
1905 Information and Telecommunications Systems (The Westin Dhakn)
Salanies. wages, bonus and benefits 654,521 74,341
Operating supplies 424,080 260,830
Data processing and maintenance 3,378,807 4,509,533
Telecom Suppon IRISTY 547,720
Entenmnment 37l o974
Dues & Subscnpuon 24354
5.006,507 5,803,399

Corporate Office Registerd Office
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UNIQUE HOTEL & RESORTS PLC

Amount 1 Taka
01 July 2025 1o ‘ 0 July 2024 1o
30 Seprember 2025 || 30 Sepremnber 2024
30, Corporate office expenses
Salary, wages and allowances 17,691,630 15,688,794
Managing Dhrector's remuneration 2,400,000 2,400,000
Frovident fund- employer part 456,716 402,624
Travelling, eonveyance and allowances 150,445 128,858
Printing, stationary and papers 121,004 64,083
Food and entertainment 318,267 247,357
Office repairs and mamtenance 378,756 710,008
Felephone, mobile and imernet 60,221 52,280
Sotlware mainienance expense 37,500 92,500
Advertisement and publicity for BSEC comphance 21,960 BR,200
Trade license, rencwal fees, duty and taxes 312310 189 304
Utility expenses 330,664 900,067
Board meeting fees 153 336 in660
Insurance premium 311,087 356,206
Audit fees - 162,501
Car repairs and maintenance 25558 97,663
Bank charge 364,617 300,390
Depreciation 646,736,059 68453947
Amortisation 235,641 349 660
Cansultancy expenses 4,778 260 187,500
Other expenses 3,559 489 36,531
Bank guaraniee commission and ather charges 7.961,450 11,234,601
Donation and subscriptions 50,000 -
Holding tax for the Weslin Dhaka 1,000 300 S4B, 196
Credit rating fees 150000 =
(Hfiee Rent 3.682.107 -
Paper, books and pencdicals - P76
111,307,016 103,958,899 _
3L Other income
Dividend income T42.984 1653214
Tower rent from maobile phone operators 803,200 715,040
Income from Aarpon Lounge 9717 45,724, 200
Hatel service charie 9672 500 7.714,775
Transport desk income 7,327,927 4,515,277
Llecticity meome 12636432 4,225,079
Fluctuanan gan’ (loss) (2,269.156) (68,768
Chthers 14,626,219 82,798
94&'“ 5,443 64*55-8,3 14
32, Other expenses
Expenses of Airport Lounge 3,197,050 14341020
Fxpenses for Transport desk 1,343,676 09012
Expenses relaung to electnicny income 9499210 3,724,703
14,039,935 ISE’-T-I.SJ-I
a3, Gain/(loss) on investment in shares
Grawn on sale of share of SFL Unique Nebras Meghnaghat Power PLC {note- 33 01) - -
Loss on investment in quoted shares (note- 33 02) 36,787,528 2630436
36,787,528 2_1630,436
33,01 Gain on sale of share of SFL Unigue Nebras Meghnaghat Power PLC
Gain on sale of investment in SFL Unigque Nebras Meghnaghat Power PLC - -

According 1o the Share Sale and Purchase Agreement with Nebras Power Investment Management BV (NPIM) signed an Apnl 15 2021, Unique Haotel &
Resons PLC has sold 49%. ve 610 na s af ordinary shares of Unique Meghnaghat Power Ltd for net consideration of USID 3,542,145 [Tk 425,807,641 The
cost of the shares @1k 1015 Th 6,100 (USD 50} The capital gain on sale of share amounts 1o USD 3 342005 (T 425.801,541

3302 Gain'{loss) on investment in quoted shares

Realized gam [rom sale of shares - 11,350)
Unrealized gan on shares 36,787,528 1,631,786
36,787,528 2,630,436

Unrealized gaind {lossh 15 recognized due o difference between the cost and the marker priee of comesponding nvestment in shares which have net been sold vet
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UNIQUE HOTEL & RESORTS PLC

Amount in Taka
1 July 202510 a1 July 2024 1o

30 September 2025 || 30 September 2024
Interest income/{expense)
Interest income from FDR and bank deposis 40,369,719 53,970,432
Interest meome from - SFL Unique Nebras Meghnaghat Power PLC- {Note 11.01) 36,929,511 15,013,650
Interest expenses (265 920,581 (322,254 482)

(218,221,151) (253,270,39%)

Provision for bad & doubiful debts

Frovision for bad & doubtful debis of The Westin Dhaka (967,036 661,643
Provision for bad & doubtful debis of Sheraton Dhaka (446,618] (20.377)
(1.413,654) 640,266

Provision for bad & deubiful debts 15 made an the rate of 3% of rolling twelve manths of average
Internatianal

receivahles in comphance with the policy of Marrion

Provision for WEPPF expense

Net profit tor WPEF distnbunon {noe-36 Q1) 8,040 086 [186,307,905)
Provision for WPPI expense (383,200) -
Net profit for WPPF disiribution

Prafit before WPPF, Sheraton prafit share and tax 44,836,614 {183.677.46%)

Less Gain on sale of share in Unique Meghnaghat Power Limited (nate-33 (1) . 5

Less: Realised gain on investment i quoted shares (note-33 424 - 1.350
Add: Unrealised loss on mvestment i gqueted shares (note-33.02) (36,787 528) (2,631,786)
Net profit for WPPF distribution 8,049,086 (186.307,905)
Share of net profit/(loss) before tax of Sheraton Dhaka

Revenue (note-27) 115,373,682 100,862 071

Cost of sales (note-28) (91,365 075) {50,057 442)
Gross profit 124,064,607 50,804,029
Admunistrative and other general expenses (note-249) (34,901,090) (549,345, 1 74)
Operating profit 39,163,517 (B.540,545)
Provision for bad & doubtful debis of Sheraton Dhaka [note-35) {446.618) (21,377
Iaterest income 2,152 38R 6,702 836

interest expenses (F1L087.128) (115.693375)
epreciation expense on Nixed assets of Sheraton Dhaka (10.848.508) | 16,635 0 4y
Net loss before tax of Sheraton Dhaka (60,426,349} {134,189,475)
S0% loss before tax of Sheraton Dhaka shared with Borak Real Estare Limited (30,213,174} (67.094,738)

According to the Jomt Venture {Profit Shanng) Agrecment dated June 30, 2024 between Unigue Hotel & Resorts PLC and Borak Real Estare Limited, which s
eifective from June 26, 2023 LHRL has shared net profittloss) before tax of Sheraton Dhaka witt BREL a1 50°50 ratio Details are wiven in note-7 01

Provision for income tax

Current tax expenses [Annexure-By 25,842,838 19,394,625
Deterred tax expensesbeneliny (note-20) (30,247 204) 39,732,295
(13,404,366) 59,126,920

Share of net profitiloss) after tax of Joinl Ventnre enlity, net off deferred tax
Share of net profit after tax of Jomt Venture entity (note-9 02 01} |

392,141,049 ” 1,538,300.069

Less: Deferred tax expenses on share of loss afler tax durme the pened (nete-20) (78.428.210) (76428.066)
313,712,840 1,461 875,003

Share of other cumprehensive income af Joint Venture entity, net off deferred tax

Share of cash [low hedgimg reserve (note-4 02 42) lUI,-HI,OUS}” 12‘.24,859_5051]
(91,412,005) (214.859.505)

Arnount 1n Taka
[ 30 September 2028 [ 30 June 2025 |

Sel Assel Value per share, Earnings per shave and Set Operating Cash Flow per share

Net Asset Value {NAY) per share

Net Asset Value A
Number of ordinary shares B
New Asset Value (NAV) per share (Published) = (A

17.938.079, 1G5
264 00,000
94,97
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UNIQUE HOTEL & RESORTS PLC

Amaount in Taka
a1 July 2025 10 01 July 2024 to

41.02 . 4 ; o 30 Seprember 2025 |f 30 September 2024
Earnings per share (EPS) on Net Profit after tax before other Comprehensive Income: (Per Valwe of Thk10)

Earnings atinbutable te ardinary shareholders A 401,683,010 || 129.791.073
Number of ordary shares B 294,400,000 264,400,000
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share (Published) C={A/B) 136 0.44

Both Basic EPS and Diluted EPS are same since there was no dilutive potential durimg the relesant period

EPS of Unique Hotel & Resorts FLC stood at Tk | 36 per share for the first quarter ended 30 September 2025, compared 1o Tk 0.44 per share in the same
period of the previous vear, reflecting a substantial increase of 20984

The impact of EPS from the Company's core operations (operational performance] was positive at Tk 017 for the quarter, compared with a negative impact of
Tk {061) in Q1 of the prior year This improvement i operational performance was supported by better cost management and gradual recovery in hospitality
demand Non-operatianal items had a favorable effect on EPS of Tk 012, mamly due to pans on investment in quoted shares, compared with a negligible
impact of Tk 001 an the prier year Addinonally, income from the jount venture entity — SFL Umigue Nebras Meghnaghat Power PLC — contributed
approximately Tk 313 crore (equivalent 10 Tk | 07 EPS), continuing to play a significant role 1o overall profitabiliny growih for the Company

A reconciliatian has been presented below, showing reconcihiation of eperational and non operational EPS For reparting period along with comparative peniod

01 July 2024 01 July 2023 =
: ‘ Vanance
Particulars to 03] {in %
30 Septernber 2025 || 30 September 2024 k)
Net profitf{loss) after tax for the period 401,683,010 129,791,073 209%,
Add Guin on invesiment 1n queted shares (36,787,528} (2.630.436) 12995,
Less: Share of profit of Jount Venture and Associate entities of UHRL {113.612,145] (305,500,724} 3%
Net profit alter tax Tor the perivd (Operational} 51,183,337 (178,340,083 -120%
Enrnings Per Share (EPS) of Unigue Hotel & Resorts PLC 1.36 0,44 2059%
Impact of EPS en operational performance of UHEL 0,17 {061} -129%
Impact of EPS en non eperabonal performanee of UHRL 012 0.0l 1299%,
Impact of EFS on performance of Joint Venture and Associare investments 107 1.04 3%
Ameunt in Taka
07 July 2024 1o 1 July 2023 1o
34 Seprember 2025 || 30 September 2024

41,03 Net Operating cash inflow/{outfow) per share

MNet cash from operating activinies A 13! 3.?55,466]" 723 097,800
MNumber of ardmary sharcs B 204 400,060 244 400,000
Net Operating cash inflow) {outfow) per share C= (A 10.39) 2,46

The net operating cash outilow per share of Tk {039} reflects sirategic investiments v working capial and operanonal commnments 1o suppon the company’s
angaing activites

41.04  Reconciliation of net eperating cash flow with net profit

Profit after tax (PAT) 88,070,865 (175,709,651
Income tax cxpense (13,404,360 52126920
Profit before tax (PBT) 74,666,499 (116,582,732)
Adjustment for:
Depreciation 66,941,700 281.673.731
Interest expense 295,520,581 G15,383 684
Unrealized foreign exchange (gain)loss - -
Dividend receved (742,984) [6,843,250)
Interest income from - SFL Unique Nebras Meghnaghat Power PLC- (Note 1101 (26.929.611) V10.371.609)
Share of net loss before tax of Sheraton Dhaka (30,2131 74) 15,128,600
Provision agminst FDR - 68,723,185
Gan an sale of share in Jomi Venture entity - -
LLoss from ivestment in shares (36,787,528) 115661427
332,505,482 460,425,737
Chunges in:
Increase in inventony 19,708 859 [14.590.268)
{Increase} decrease (i accounts and other receivihles (201835970 (G316 3300
(Inerease ) decrease i advances. deposits and prepiyients (1341330780 2094 TRE
Increase in accounts payable 24,728,067 1860635
Increase in accruals and pavables (49,147,733} 72744088
Increase | decrease) in due to operatar and 1ts atfiliates Lo 706417 (BT670330)
Cash generated from operating activities (BOA67,576) 1445438120
Tax pad during the penod (24,387 400 (1T REG 683
Net cosh generated by opernting activities (113,755 466}
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Risk exposure

The Company is exposed Lo various risks through its use of financial instruments. The events and consequences discussed in these
risk factors could, in circumstances, we may or may not be able 1o accurately predict, recagnize, or control_have a material adverse
effect on our business, ligudity, financial condition, and results of operations [n addition. these risks could cause resulis 1o differ
materially from those we express in forward-looking statements contained in this report o in other Company communications.
These risk factors do not identify all risks that we face; our operations could also be affected by factors, events, or uncertainties that
are not presently known to us or that we currently do not consider to present significant risks to our operations

However, the main tvpes of risks are credit risk, interest rate risk. exchange raie risk, industry risk, market nisk, operational risk.
and hquidity risk which result from both its aperating and investing activities. The Company's risk management 1s coordinated at
its head office, i close co-operation with the board of directors, audit commutiee. and investment committee. and focuses on
actively securing the Company's short to medium-term cash flows by minimizing the exposure to financial markets, Long-lerm
financial investments are managed to generate lasting returns. The board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment
and oversight of the Company’s nisk management framework. The Company’s nisk management policies are estabhished to idenufy
and analyze Lhe risks faced by the Company., to sel appropriate risk limits and controls, and 1o monitor risks and adherence to limits
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to rellect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities
The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive
controlled environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations. The audit commiltee oversees how
management monitors compliance with the Company's risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the
risk management framework. The audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both
regular and ad hoe reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the resubs of which are reported to the audit committee

The investment committee has taken all investment decisions of the company after meuculous and detailed discussion among the
committee members and finally approved by the Board of Directors us a result nsk related tw mvestiment can be reduced. The most
sigmificant financial risks to which the Company is exposed to are described below:

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Compuny if a customer or counterparty to @ financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers. The Company’s exposure (o credit
risk is limited to the carrying amount of financial assets recognized at the balance sheet date.

Management perception:

The Company's exposure Lo credit nisk is influenced mainly by the corporate and individual characteristies of each customer. The
demographics of the Company’s customer base, meluding the default nisk of the industry and country in which customers operate,
have less of an influence on credit nsk The Company has, over the vears, conducted busingss with various corporates, tour
operators, and individuals located in different jurisdictions and, owing to the spread of the Company's debtor base, The Company
has a credit policy in place under which new customers are analyzed indwidually for creditworthiness before the Company’s
standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. The Company’s review includes external ratings, where available,
and in some cases bank or other hotel references. Customers who il o meet the Company’s benchmark creditworthiness may
transact with the Company only on a cash basis. In monitoring customer credit nsk, customers are individually assessed. Customers
who are graded as “mgh nsk” are placed on a restricted customer Hst and future sales are only made on a prepayment basis. The
Company does not require collateral m respect of trade and other recervables The Company establishes an allowance for doubtful
recoveries that represents 1s estimate of losses i respect of twade and other recervables @ 3% of rolling twelve months average
receivables in compliance with the policy of Marriott International

*See note 10 for further information an impairment of (inanciul assets that are past due

Interest rate risk

Interest rate nisk is the potenual for investment losses that can be tngeered by o mave upward in the prevailing rates for new debt
mstruments, Changes in the government’s monetary policy, along with increased demand for loans/investments tend 1o increase the
interest rates which mostly affect companies having floating rate loans or companies investing in debt securities

Management perception:

Recent changes in the market and economic condition in Bangladesh indicate an uplifiment of the cap imposed by the central bank
of Bangladesh thus an increase in interest rate, As per the recent circular of the Bangluadesh Bank. all Term loan rates will be Six
months moving Average Treasury Bill Rate (SMART) + 3% wiuch comes to average 12 38% which sienificantly impacted on
imterest expenses during the year, However, we are continuoushy following up with all hanks to reduce the rate as low as possible

Exchange ratc risk

Exchange rate nisk anses due to changes in exchange rates. As the Company imports equipment from abroad and ulso eams revenus
i forergn currency. unfavorable volatlity or currency Hluctuation may atfeet the profitabiliny of the Company. When the exchanae
rate is mercased against local currency opportunity is created for generating more profit
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UNIQUE HOTEL & RESORTS PLC

Management perception:

Unique Hotel & Resorts PLC has well-organized plan to always record the up-to-date currency conversion rate whenever it gets
paid for services in foreign currencies from overseas guests. The Company changes the price of s products and services 10 cope
with the change in the exchange rate to mitigate the effect of unfavarable volatility in the exchange rate on the company’s earings

Industry risks
Industry risk refers to the risk of increased competition from foreign and domestic seurces leading to lower prices. revenues. profit
margins, market shares, etc which could have an adverse impact on the busmess. linancial condition, and results of operation.

Management perception:

Risks Relating to Our Industry,

Our industry is highly competitive, which may impact our ability to compete successfully for guests We operate in markets that
contain many competitors, Our hotel offerings generally compete with major hotel chains, independent hotels, and home-sharing
and rental services. Our ability to remain competitive and attract and retain business. group, and leisure travelers depends on our
success in distinguishing and driving preference for our lodzing products and services, including the Marriott Lovalty Program,
direct booking channels, consumer-facing technology platforms and services, and other niferings. I we cannot compete successluily
in these areas, our operating margins could contract. our market share could decrease, and our earnings could decline. Further. the
new lodging supply at Dhaka markets could have a negative impact on the hotel industry and hamper our ability Lo maintamn or
merease room rates or oceupaney. Economic downturns and other global, national, and regional conditions and events could further
impact our business, financial results, and growth.

Because we conduct our business on a global scale, we are affected by changes in global, national, or regional economies,
governmental policies (including in areas such as trade, travel, immigration, healthcare, and refated issues), and geopolitical, public
health, social and other conditions and events. Our business, financial results, and growth are impacted by weak or volatile
economic conditions, pandemics and other outbreaks of disease. natural and man-made disasters, changes in energy prices and
currency values, political instability, geopolitical conflict, actual ar threatened war, terranst activily and other acts of violence.
heightened travel security measures. travel advisories, disruplions in air travel, and concemns aver the foregoing. These conditions
and events have in the past materially negatively impacted. and could in the future materially negativelv impact, our business.
aperations, and financial results 1n many ways, including, but not linited 1o, as follows:

* reducing revenues at our hotels, potentially impacting our abilily to meet expenses. ineluding payment of amounts owed 1o us:

* causing hotel construction and opening delays:

* requiring us 1o borrow or otherwise raise a significant amount of cash in order 1o preserve financial {lexibility, repay maturing
debt, and manage debt maturities;

+ causing the tenms of our borrowing to be more expensive or more restricive: and

+ adversely affecting associate hiring and retention

In this highly competitive lodging industry. our hotels compete based on imultiple factors, for nstance, location. quality of service.
standard of accommodation, room rates, facilities, ete. Competition 1s ofien specific to the individual markets in which our hotels
are located and includes competition from existing and new hotels operated under brands primarily in the upper upscale segments
Increased competition could have a material adverse effect on the occupancy rate, average daily room rate, and RevPAR of our
hotels or may require us to make capital improvements that we otherwise would not have o make, which may result in decreases in
our profitability. We believe our hotels enjoy certain competitive advantages as a result of being flagged with globally recogmized
brands (Marriott International), including access Lo centralized reservation systems and national advertising, marketing, and
pramotional services, strong hotel management expertise, and lovalty programs. Our principal competitars include hotel operating
companies, ownership companies (including other hospitality Real Estate Investment Trusts), and national and interational hotel
prands We face increased competition from providers of less expensive accommodations. such as select-service hotels or
independently managed hotels, during periods of economic downturn when leisure and business travelers become more sensitive to
room rates, Increasimgly, we also face competition from peer-to-peer mventory sources that allow travelers o stay at homes and
apartments booked Irom owners, thereby providing an alternative to hotel rooms.

Mareover, the hospitality industry is tvpically seasonal in nature The periad during which our properties experience higher
revenues vary from property to property. depending principally upon location and the customer hase served This seasonality can be
expected to cause periodic fluctuations in a hotel’s room revenues, occupaney levels, room rates, and operating expenses.
Therefore, volatility in our financial performance resulting from the seasonality of the hospitality industry could adversely affect our
Inancial condition and resulls of operations

Market risks

Market nisk refers to the nisk of adverse market conditions alfecting the sales and profitabiliy of the Company, Mostily, the nisk
arises from fulling demand for the product or service which would harm the performance of the company On the other hand, strong
marketing and brand management would help the company increase their customer base,
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UNIQUE HOTEL & RESORTS PLC

Management perception:

We are exposed to market risk primarily from changes in interest rates. which may affect our future income, cash flows and fair
value, depending on changes to interest rates. In centain situations, we may seck 1o reduce cash low volaulity associated with
changes in nterest rates by entering into financial arrangements tended o provide a hedee agamst a portion of the risks
associated with such volaulity

Moreover, the company’s brand “Westin” has a very strong image in the local and international markets. Marriott International
{former Starwood Asia Pacific Hotels & Resorts Pte. Ltd ) also has a reputation of providing quality hotel management services.
Moreover, the demand for five-star hotels in the country is increasing while there are very few five-star hotels to meet the demand.
The strong brand management and quality service have enabled the company to capture significant markel share in the sector and
the company is continuously penetrating into the market and upgrading the quality of its service to nuninuze the nisk. The addition
of "Sheraton Dhaka" operations to the portfolio will provide synergies to cater to MICE segment business, and larger events,
accommeoedate larger group business, and improve operational efficiency with resource optimization,

Operational risks

Non-availabilities of materialsiequipment/services may affect the smooth operational activities of the Company, On the other hand.
the equipment may face operational and mechanical failures due to natural disasters, terronst attacks, unforeseen events, lack of
supervision and neghigence, leading to severe accidents and losses.

Management perception:

We maintain insurance coverage for commercial general liability, and property, including business interruption, terrorism. and other
risks with respect to our business for all of our hotels. We also mamntain workers’ compensation insurance including employees’
irresponsibility, and accidental damage for our employees. Most ol our msurance policies are written with self-insured retentions ot
deductibles that are common in the insurance market for similar risks. These policics provide coverage for elaim amounts that
exceed our self-insured retentions or deductibles. Cur insurance provides coverage related to any claims or losses arising out of
terrorism, property. and operation of our hotels.

Moreover. the Company is cquipped with power backup and 24/7 security surveillance (CCTV) systems, protected with armor
guards. and incompliance with global safety and secunty standards, which reduce security nsk Besides, the equipment is under
insurance coverage in order to get reasonable compensation for any damages. Apart from these. routing security checks and proper
maintenance ol the equipment also reduce/eliminate the operational risk. Conunuous traimng of company assoclates makes them
equipped to address the situations due o natural disasters and unforeseen events The company s associated with multiple
domestic and international vendors to ensure the smooth functioning of the supply chain along with AMC's for key equipment
ensure consistency n supplies and smooth operations

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that a company or individual will not have enough cash to meet its financial obligations (pay its debts) on
tume
Management perception:

We have also encashed USI) 3,342,095 which has been realised [rom sclling 49% ordinary shares of UMPL to Nebras Power
Investiment Management B.V. o meel operattonal and project related pavments, Furthermore, with growing busimess prospects
from opening of Sheraton Dhaka and receipts from Nebras Power Investment Management BV from 4th closing according to the
Share Purchase Agreement, we will have sufficient liquidity to pay our 2024-25 debt maturitics, to meet project related
expenditures and to fund other short-term obligations,

We have established reserves for capital expenditures (“FI&L reserve”™) m oaceordance with our management agreement with
Marnott International, Generally, these agreements require thal we [und 4% of hotel revenues into a FF&E reserve unless such
amounts have been incurred Our cash management ohjectives continue to maintain the availability of liquidity, minimize
operational costs, make debt payments, and lund our capital expendilure programs and future acquisivons, Further, we have an
investment policy that s focused on the preservation of capital and maximizing the returm on new and existing investments
Mareover, funds are also being arranged as and when required from sisier concems within the group
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UNIQUE HOTEL & RESORTS PLC

Transactions with key management personnel

Key management personnel includes Board of Directors who have the authority and responsibility for planming, direcung and controlling the
activities of the entity whether directly or indirectly. The transactions with key management personnel are disclosed below;

The Company’s key management personnel includes the Company's directors.

During the year, no loan was given to the directors of the Company.

['he Company's key management personnel compensation in total and for cach of the following categories are stated below!

a) Short Term Employee Benefits - Employee benefits (other than termination benefits) which fall due wholly within twelve months during
the year in which the emplovees render service Such as -

Salaries and bonuses (if pavable within twelve months of the end of the year)

Salary and other allowances

Honerarium tor attending mectings

Total

Amount in Taka

01 July 2025 to 01 July 2024 to
30 September 2025 30 September 2024
2,400,000 2.400.000
153,336 36,660
2,553,336 2,436,666

b) Post Employment Benefits - Employee benefits such as Gratuity, provident fund and leave encashment.

Post employment benelils

The Company's managing director dees not avail any past employment benefits

¢) Other Long Term Employee Benefits
Employee benefits that is not due to be paid wholly within twelve months after the end of the vear in which the employees render the related
service. Such as - long service benefits or sabbatical leave, jubilee or other long service benefits, long term disability benelits

No such benelits are available in the Company henee, it 15 not applicable.

) Termination Benefits

Amount in Taka

01 July 2025 to
30 September 2025

01 July 2024 to
30 September 2024

Emplovee benefits pavable as a result of either: (1) an entity’s decision to terminate an employee'’s employment before normal retirement date.
or {11y an entity's decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits

Fermination benefits

) Share based payments
No such benefits are available 1n the Company hence. it is not applicable.
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UNIQUE HOTEL & RESORTS PLC

Contingent liability disclosure

Large Tax Payer Unit (LTU), VAT Authority raised a demand U/S 55 of the VAT Act, 1991 Tk. 71.295,948 for
Supplementary Duly (SD) and VAT on SD for the period from July 2007 to January 2009 through letier no.
41 TU{Mushak)25/The Westin Dhaka/Demand/Cricle-3/09/2111, dated 20 April 2009.

Subsequently, Unique Hotel & Resorts PLC (The Westin Dhaka) submitted a writ petition through writ petition no.
3910/2009 and the Honorable High Court Division of the Supreme Court discharged the previous issued rule on
10/10/2015.

Unigue Hotel & Resorts PLC (The Westin Dhaka) submitted application to the Customs, Excise and VAT Appellate
Tribunal through nothi no. CEVT/Case/(VAT)-16/2018 dated 28/05/2019, Based on our application and ground of
appeal the Honorable Appellate Tribunal reduce the demand from Tk. 71,295,948 10 Tk. 11,420.622 on 05/09/2019
for SD and VAT on SD.

It is primarily established that VAT Appellate Tribunal reduced the original demand of LTU and the said Tribunal
was pleased to demand from Unique Hotel & Resorts PLC (The Westin Dhaka) Tk. 1.14,20.622 as SD and VAT on
SD vide memo dated 05/09/2019 and against that order. Based on the new demand. Unique Hotel & Resorts PLC
(The Westin Dhaka) filed VAT Revision No. 29 of 2019 belore the High Court Division and subsequently the said
VAT revision has been withdrawn on November 08, 2022 and Unique Hotel & Resorts PLC (The Westin Dhaka) had
already paid the aforesaid demand of Tk. 11.420,622 on June 08, 2023 to the LTU VAT authority.

However, NBR authority also filed VAT Revision before the High Court Division in 2021 against the order of
Tribunal for reducing the aforesaid demand and the remaining amount ol Tk. 39.873.326 (Tk. 71,295.948 -Tk.
11,420,622) would be unsettled until and unless hearing and disposal of the VAT Revision which is pending at
present in the Hon'ble High Court Division and its a matter of subjuidice.

Larpe Tax Payer Unit (LTU). VAT raised a demand of 'Tk. 5,353.916 ws 73(2) of the VAT and SD Act 2012, through
letter no. 08.01.0000.006.01.028.19/102 dated 3 February 2020 due to non-submission of Input-output co-efficient
(Mushak 4.3) for the period from July 2019 to August 2019. Subsequently we applied to the Customs. Excise and
VAT Appellate Tribunal for fair judgement after depositing 10% of the said demand amount on August 31, 2020. The
Learned Tribunal rejected the Appeal by its order dated September 19. 2021,

Moreover. we have received further demand letter from LTU. VAT Awhority for pavment of Tk, 5.353.916 on June
02. 2024, vide letter ref. no, 08.01.0000.006.01.015.19/58 dated June 02. 2024, However. we have discussed with our
legal advisor in this regard and the learned legal advisor has informed us that we have some strong grounds to succeed

in Appeal. Accordingly, we have filed an Appeal before the Honorable High Court Division of the Supreme Court of

Bangladesh vide Writ Petition No. 86/2024 after depositing 10% of the aforesaid demand amount of Tk, 535.392 as
on May 02, 2024. Moreover, the Honorable High court division has passed a decision alfirming the order dated June
23, 2024 to be stayed for a period of one year from 11 June 2024,

It is worthy to mention that. the NBR issued an SRO 117-Aian/2020:/100 Mushak date 14/05/2020 and revise the
Input-output co-efficient form and excmpted service industries (o provide any input output co-efficient. Subsequently.
the VAT Act and Rules Department clarify the matter and issued a further explanation through letter no.
08/Mushok/2020 Dated 14/10/20 that service industry need not to submit any Input output co-efficient. In the
prevailing circumstances we strongly believe that the honorable High Court will consider the fact and provide the fair

Judgement towards Unique Hotel and Resorts PLC.

Unigue Hotel and Resorts PLC has a pending Writ Petition No, 2389 of 2017 with the Honorable High Court
Division of the Supreme Court of Bangladesh regarding holding tax of The Westin Dhaka, The Company had paid
BDT 2,192,785 for FY 2016-17 as per the divective of the Honorable High Court Division of the Supreme Court of
Bangladesh on Sth October 2017, However, the Dhaka North City Corporation (DNCC} imposed BDT 8.604.552 per
vear as holding tax for the Westin Dhakaw
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As the High Court Division has granted a stay order on its directive for one year which has been extended upto 14th
August 2024, considering the subjuidice matter, the Company has not paid for the period from FY 2016-17 to FY
2023-24. However. the Company has duly accrued the holding lax expenses for BDT 2.192.785 on a yearly basis for
the atorementioned fiscal years. The writ petition is pending before High Court Division for disposal and there is also
representations on behalf of The Westin Dhaka flor not to proceed with the demand of BDT 8.604,552.

There has further been reassessment of Annual value of Holding tax as well as increase in the holding tax rate by
DNCC which they had communicated to us for hearing on 2nd February 2023, After the said hearing, DNCC has not
forwarded any further demand with new assessed value considering the fact that it is a tagged matter with the writ
petition no., 2589 of 2017 directly as the DNCC has increased the rate in the new assessment,

In these circumstances. the Company has taken legal opinion from a renowned lawyer and also taken an expert
opinion from ACNABIN, Chartered Accountants who is of the opined that all the things depend on the disposal of the
said writ petition through the final judgement. As a result. the Company has made provision for BDT 2,192,785 on a
yearly basis for FY 2016-17 to FY 2023-24 under the prevailing facts and circumstances,

Amount in Taka

30 September 2025 || 30 June 2025

Letters of guarantee
Bank guarantee
Southeast Bank PLC 13,298,371 13.298.371
Premier Bank PLC 1.304.925 1,304,925
Prime Bank PLC 57.801.080 57,801.080
The City Bank PLC 969,191,476 969,191,476
One Bank PLC 1.800.000,000 1.800.000,000

2,841,595,853 2,841,595,853

Customs authority imposed customs duties and taxes without considering concessionary rate of duty at 5% on
imported capital machinery for setting up "the Westin Dhaka" during the years [rom 2004 to 2007. Unigue Hotel &
Resorts PLC made writ petitions in the Honorable High Court Division of the Supreme Court of Bangladesh. The
Court discharged the order directing the release of imported capital machineries on payment of duty, tax and other
charges 1o be assessed on Lthe basis of concessionary rate in terms of SRO No. 114/2006 dated 08.06.2006 subject to
furnishing bank guarantee for the remaining customs duly. As directed by the Court. Unique Hotel & Resorts PLC
made the payments and Bank Guarantees for a total of Tk, 69,909,970 were issued by Southeast Bank PLC, The City
Bank PLC, Prime Bank PLC and Premier Bank PLC on behalf of Unique Hotel & Resorts PLC. However, according
to the legal opinion of legal advisor. there is remote possibility ol any outllow in settlement of these bank guarantees
as the cases are under subjuidice now,

According to Gas Distribution guidelines for commercial use of gas which was issued on August 03, 2014; securily
deposit equivalent to three months bill is required to be given to Titas Gas Transmission and Distribution Company
Limited. Two third of the alorementioned security deposil is required to be given by issuing bank guarantee by any
scheduled bank for five years. Therefore, nine (09) bunk guarantees had been issued in favor of Titas Gas
Transmission & Distribution Company Limited by The City Bank PLC and Prime Bank PLC on behalf of Unique
Hotel & Resorts PLC. The City Bank PLC issued total bank guarantee amounting to a total of Tk.12,141.700 for The
Westin Dhaka and Prime Bank PLC issued bank guarantee amounting to a total of Tk. 29,748,000 for Shahjadpur
Power Plant and Sheraton Dhaka.

The City Bank PLC has issued a bank guarantee of USD 1400735979 @ 11025 which is equivalenmt to BDT
1.544.333.460.85 in favor of Standard Chartered Bank to sccure the Sponsor's obligation to the Senior Lenders of
SFL Unique Nebras Meghnaghat Power PLC under the Sponsor Support and Share Retention Deed executed on 28th
February 2023, The bank guarantee has been issued on 4th December 2023 which will be expired within 12 months
from issue date or 3rd December 2028, whichever is earlier, However, the above bank guarantee already reduced to
LISD 7.665.700.85 as on August 28, 2024,

16 |
Registerd Office
0' —v;'i;_-m
® e ® THEWESTIN
@ ELI
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47.  Events after reporting period
In compliance with the requirements of 1AS 10: Events After the Reporting period, adjusting events that provide additional
information about the Company's position at the end of the reporting period are reflected in the financial statements and events
after the reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes when material. The company has no adjusting or
non-adjusting events after reporting period.

48.  Directors responsibility statements
The Board of Directors takes the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of these financial statements as per the
provision of "The Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of financial statements”.

49.  General

49.01 Employee details:
Total number of employees having annual salary and allowances of Tk. 96,000 or above each at the reporting date was as

follows:
Particulars 30 September 2025 30 June 2025
Number of employees of Unique Hotel & Resorts PLC 808 818

None of the employees were in receipt of remuneration which in aggregate was less than Tk. 8,000 per month

49.02 Remittance of dividend
No dividend has been remitted during the year.

49.03 Rounding off
Amounts appearing in these financial statements have been rounded off to the nearest Taka and wherever considered necessary.

49.04 Rearrangement of previous year figures
To facilitate comparison, certain relevant balances pertaining to the previous year have been rearranged or reclassified whenever
considered necessary to conform to current year presentation.

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary” Chief Executive Officer

S&Qw{mx

Tt
X : ;
DII‘L’CIO]“] Independent Director Chairperson

Dated. Dhaka:
13 November 2025
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UNIQUE HOTEL & RESORTS PLC

—Annexure-i

Unigue Hotel & Resorts PLC
Caleulation of Current Tax Provision
For the period from 01 July 2025 to 30 September 2025
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Corporate Office

it Amount || .\_mnunt ]
[ Taka ” Taka |
Net Profit before tax (as per statement of profit of loss and other comprehensive income) T4.000,499
Less:  Non-business income for separate consideration:
Cash Dividend icome il 742,984
Tower rent income from mabile phone operators ] 803,200
Shoep rent mcome 27 275240
Capital gain on sale of share of SFL Umque Nebras Mepghnaghat Power PLC 3301 .
Bank Interest Income KE| 40,369,719
Realized capital loss from sale of shares of histed companies i3 -
Unrealized loss on investiment in share 33 36,787,528
81,456,170
(6,789,672)
Add:  Inadmissible expenses (for separate consideration)
Accounting depreciation 30 66,756,059
Accounting amortisation 30 235,641
Entertainment expenses 28, 29,02, 29.04, 29.05 & 30 2,057,950
Accrued interest expense kL] 2212.245.482
Provision for bad debts 35 413654
Provision for gratuity 26,08 7212410
296,921,196
193,131,524
Less:  Admissible expenses:
Tax deprecianon (3rd schedule, Pan-1, Para 4} 11704, 540
Tax amortisation {3rd schedule, Pan-2, Para 4) 624,258
Allowance for Gramity 2605 496,768
Interest pard durnng the year 302,543,721
Fayment for WEPF 604 -
Income from business (hefore entertainment expenses) (132,297,763)
Less: Entertamment expenses (a5 per section 55 of Income Tax Acl, 2013) (2,425,955)
Total ineome from husiness (119,871,808)
Less: Unabsorbed deprecianon camied forward from AY 202(-22 -
Taxable income from business (119,871,804)
Add: Capital gain on sale of share of SFL Unigue Nebras Meghnaghat Power PLC -
Add; Capital loss on sale of share of listed companies {Not eligible for set off but to be carried forward u's 70) -
Add: Capital Joss on sale of share of listed companies carried forward from AY 2022-23 {Not eligible for sct off U8
37 but to be carried forward /s 40) . (5:842.196)
Add: Capital loss on sale of assets carried forward from AY 2022-23 (Not eligible for set off U/S 37 but o be
: [43.038.92%)
carried forward u/s 40)
Add:  Income from rent
Shop rent e 2,752,740
Tower rent income from mobile phone operators 3l 803,200
Total inceme from rent 3,555,940
Less Repair and maintenance expense (as per section 38 of Income Tax Act, 2023) {1.066,782)
2,489,158
Add Income from financial asscts
Cash dividend income 3l 742,984
Bank mterest income a4 Ti9
41,112,703

Total taxable income
Computation of ta liability:

(11 Business loss

Mummum tax U8 163 of ITA. 2023 (whichever 1s higher)
(1] Grross Recept {Revenue TK 732,941,994 @ 1%y
(1) Tax deducted ar source (U 8-110)

(23 Caputal mn on sale of share of SFL Unique Nebras

Meghnaghat Poser PLC

(31 Income from rent

41 Income ftam financial assets

Tax liability for the period from 01 July 2025 10 30 September 2025

2 ARG 158
112503

43,601,861

Total tax expense for the period from 01 July 2025 1o 30 September 2023
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UNIQUE HOTEL & RESORTS PLC

Unique Hotel & Resorts PLC
Calculation of Average Effective Tax Rate
For the period from 01 July 2025 to 30 September 2025

Components of tax expense

(Annexure-B)
(Note -38)

Current tax expense
Deferred tax expense
Total income tax expense

Explanation of the relationship between tax expense & profit before tax
(i) a numerical reconciliation between tax expense & profit before tax

Profit before tax

Current tax expense

Business income - applicable tax rate @20%

Income from rent - applicable tax rate @20%

Income from financial assets - applicable tax rate (@20%
Income from special business - applicable tax rate @20%
Total current tax expense (A)

Total deferred tax expense (B)

Total income tax expense (A+B)

(ii) a numerical reconciliation between the average effective tax rate & applicable tax rate

Tax effect on business income

Tax effect on income from rent

Tax effect on income from financial assets
Tax effect on income from special business
Tax effect on deferred tax

Average effective tax rate
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Annexure-C

Amount in Taka

25,842,838
39,247,204

65,090,042

74,666,499

17,122,466
497,832
8,222,541

25,842,838

39,247,204

65,090,042

22.93%
0.67%
11.01%
0.00%
52.56%

87.17%

" THEWESTIN




	1.pdf (p.1-25)
	2.pdf (p.26-51)

